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Chairman's Statement

Dear shareholders,

The global business environment remained challenging in 2016.
Nevertheless, Wanda Hotel Development Limited, as always, develops
its business by adhering to the strategic goal of achieving long-term
development of the Company and sustainable growth of shareholders’
value in the long run.

In terms of business development, given the market and political
environment in Spain and the resulting uncertainties on the operation
conditions and development potential of the Madrid Property Project, the
Group decided to dispose of the Madrid Property Project in November
2016 and the transaction is expected to be completed at the end of
March 2017, which would strengthen the liquidity and financial position
of the Group. In addition, the Group continued the development of
existing projects with 3 projects already launched for pre-sale, including
the London Project in the UK, Chicago Project in the US and the Gold
Coast Jewel Project in Australia, all of which have achieved encouraging
sales performance.

Looking ahead in 2017, with support from our parent company,
Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (“DWCP”), the Group
will steadily develop the existing projects, while seeking to identify
attractive investment opportunities with the objective of expanding our
revenue sources as well as improving our profitability, thus laying a solid
foundation for its long-term development.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, directors, management team,
staff, business partners and all others who have rendered their unfailing
support and contribution to the Group.

Ding Benxi
Chairman

8 March 2017
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Business Review
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LONDON PROJECT, UK

In September 2013, Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the
“Company”) acquired a project at 1 Nine EIms Lane, London SW8 5NQ,
in the UK with Wanda Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
(“Wanda HK”) in the form of a joint venture, in which the Company
holds 60% and Wanda HK holds 40%. The planned total gross floor
area of the project is approximately 110,000 sg.m., and is expected
to be developed into a high-end complex comprising residential and
hotel units. Pre-sale of residential portion commenced in 2014 with
outstanding results achieved, and approximately 69% of the total
saleable area were pre-sold at the end of December 2016.

The London Project completed the demolition work of the existing
structure and commenced construction work in 2015. The foundation
works are in progress now, and the development of this project is
expected to be completed in 2021.

JOINT VENTURE PLATFORM IN CONTINENTAL
EUROPE AND MADRID PROJECT, SPAIN

In June 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK
to establish a joint venture platform in Continental Europe, Wanda
Europe Real Estate Investment Co., Limited (“Wanda Europe”), with
a total capital commitment of HK$12.5 billion, in which the Company
holds 60% and Wanda HK holds 40%, for the joint acquisition and
development of suitable real property projects in Continental Europe. On
the same day, the Company and Wanda HK acquired the Madrid Project
in Spain through this joint venture platform.

On 3 November 2016, Wanda Europe entered into a share purchase
agreement with Baraka Global Invest, S.L.U. (“Baraka”), in relation to
the sale of all the issued shares in Plaza de Espana 19 Development,
S.L.U., (formerly known as Wanda Madrid Development, S.L.U., “Wanda
Madrid”) which holds the Madrid Project in Spain, at a consideration of
EUR272 million, subject to adjustments as set out in the circular of the
Company dated 16 December 2016. The disposal is expected to be
completed by the end of March 2017.
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JOINT VENTURE PLATFORM IN THE AMERICAS
AND CHICAGO PROJECT, AMERICA

In July 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK to
establish a joint venture platform in the Americas with a total capital
commitment of HK$10 billion, in which the Company holds 60% and
Wanda HK holds 40%, for the joint acquisition and development of
suitable real property projects in the Americas.

On the same day, through Wanda Chicago Real Estate LLC (“Wanda
Chicago”), a wholly owned subsidiary of this joint venture platform, the
Company and Wanda HK entered into (i) the formation and contribution
agreement with Magellan Parcel C/D LLC (“Magellan”) and Lakeshore
East LLC; and (ii) the operating agreement with Magellan to jointly
develop the Chicago Project in which Wanda Chicago holds 90% and
Magellan holds 10% of such joint venture.

The planned total gross floor area of the Chicago Project is approximately
176,000 sg.m.. It is located in the heart of Chicago, adjacent to
Millennium Park and Chicago CBD. Many of the well-known destinations
are within walking distance of the project, such as the Theatre District,
Museum Campus and Michigan Avenue. This is the last unbuilt site
within the Lakeshore East area with excellent geographic location. The
project is expected to be developed into a 350-meter, 93-story five-star
hotel (with estimated 193 rooms) and high-end condominiums, which will
be Chicago’s third highest building upon completion and a new landmark
in Chicago. Pre-sale of high-end condominiums portion commenced
in September 2015, and approximately 39% of total saleable area
were pre-sold up to the end of December 2016. The Chicago Project
obtained planning approvals and completed settlement in April 2016,
and commenced construction work in August 2016. The development
of the Chicago Project is expected to be completed in 2020.
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JOINT VENTURE PLATFORM IN AUSTRALIA AND
GOLD COAST JEWEL PROJECT, AUSTRALIA

In August 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK
to establish a joint venture platform in Australia with a total capital
commitment of HK$12.5 billion, in which the Company holds 60% and
Wanda HK holds 40%, for the joint acquisition and development of
suitable real property projects in Australia.

On the same day, through Wanda Australia Commercial Properties
Pty Ltd (“Wanda Australia Commercial”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
this joint venture platform, the Company and Wanda HK entered into
the subscription and shareholders agreement with DWCP, Mr. Riyu Li
and Ms. Fengliu Wu (collectively, “Li”, who were shareholders of Jewel
Project company) and Wanda Ridong (Gold Coast) Development Pty
Ltd. (“Jewel Project Company”). After completion of the subscription
under the agreement, the Jewel Project Company is now owned by
Wanda Australia Commercial and Li, as to 55% and 45% respectively,
for the joint development of the Jewel Project in the Gold Coast.

The planned total gross floor area of the Jewel Project is approximately
144,000 sg.m.. It is located in the heart of the Gold Coast city
center — the Surfers Paradise, and is the only five-star hotel and
apartment project approved to be erected directly adjacent to beaches
in the Gold Coast. It is comprised of three high-rise tower buildings of
which one will be a five-star hotel, and the other two luxury apartments
for sales. The Jewel Project will become a city landmark in the Gold
Coast upon completion.

The Jewel Project obtained the approval for the development plan in
December 2014, completed the demolition work of the existing structure
and commenced construction work in March 2015. The structural
works for the underground area are in progress now. Pre-sale of luxury
apartments portion commenced in September 2015, and approximately
31% of saleable area were pre-sold up to the end of December 2016.
The development of this project is expected to be completed in 2019.
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SYDNEY PROJECT, AUSTRALIA

After the acquisition of the Jewel Project, on 23 January 2015 and 4
March 2015, the Company and Wanda HK, through Wanda One Sydney
Pty Ltd (“Wanda One Sydney”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the joint
venture platform in Australia under the Master Australia JV Agreement,
entered into agreements to acquire the second premium project in
Australia — the Sydney Project.

The Sydney Project is located in Sydney’s Central Business District, a
key commercial center and a prime area for development. The Sydney
Project is expected to be redeveloped into a 185 meter high tower
mixed-used complex comprising hotel, residential and retail areas,
with a planned total gross floor area of approximately 98,300 sg.m..
The Sydney Project will become a new city landmark in Sydney upon
completion. It is expected that the approval for the development plan
will be obtained in the first half of 2017 and demolition of the existing
structure will also commence in the first half of 2017. Pre-sale will
commence in 2017 and construction work will commence in 2018.
The development of the Sydney Project is expected to be completed in
2021.

WANDA PLAZA, GUILIN, THE PRC (“GUILIN
PROJECT")

In February 2014, the Company acquired a piece of state-owned land in
Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC with Wanda HK in
the form of a joint venture, in which the Company holds 51% and Wanda
HK holds 49%. The Guilin Project is located in the central area of Guilin
High-tech Zone, with planned total gross floor area of approximately
330,000 sg.m., including 153,000 sg.m. of shopping mall and 177,000
sq.m. of retail, residential and other properties for sale.

The construction work of the Guilin Project has completed and the
shopping mall opened in September 2015. With satisfactory commercial
leases and operating conditions, the shopping mall has become a
supreme landmark business centre in Guilin. For the sales of properties,
approximately 83% of the saleable area were sold up to the end
of December 2016, and properties were delivered to owners since
December 2015.
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HENGLI CITY, FUZHOU, THE PRC

The total gross floor area of Hengli City is approximately 242,000 sqg.m..
The project is a residential, office and retail complex located in Fuzhou,
the PRC. As of 31 December 2016, the floor area of its remaining
properties was approximately 83,200 sq.m., and the majority of the
office and car park units were leased. The commercial portion was fully
leased to Wangfujing Department Store, offering stable cash flow in
rental income for the Company. During 2016, revenue of approximately
HK$93.2 million was generated from the sales of residential units and
car park units.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, with support from our parent, DWCP, the Group
will continue to focus on international gateway cities which attract a
significant number of tourists, business travelers and has a growing
trend of international tourists. The Group will actively participate in the
investment, development and operation of mixed-use property projects
with a focus on hotel assets. The Group will steadily develop the existing
projects, whereas the residential component will be sold as scheduled
if market conditions are favourable. The Group will continue to hold the
commercial component and hotel assets for investment purpose, and
have the hotels operated under Wanda brands (the existing brands
include but are not limited to Wanda Vista, Wanda Reign and Wanda
Realm).

The Group will continue to prudently seek profitable investment

opportunities, further expand the Group’s sources of revenue, enhance
the Group’s profitability, and maximize return for its shareholders.
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Financial Review
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RESULTS

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately HK$374.2 million (2015: HK$2,176.7 million). The
significant decrease was mainly due to a significant decrease of property
sales revenue of approximately HK$1,773.7 million from PRC segment.
As the Guilin Project was completed in 2015, most of the property sales
revenue from this project had been recognized in 2015. In 2016, the
Group’s revenue mainly came from selling a limited amount of remaining
units left at the Guilin Project and Hengli City.

Revenue of HK$149.1 million, HK$198.8 million and HK$26.3 million
was derived from the sales of properties, property leasing and property
management service for the year ended 31 December 2016 respectively.

During the year, the Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders of the
Company was approximately HK$60.7 million (2015: HK$262.7 million).
The decrease in loss was mainly due to (i) a one-off net valuation gain
on investment properties of approximately HK$226 million, (i) a non-
recurring reversal of impairment loss of inventories of approximately
HK$160.9 million at the Madrid Project, (i) a decrease in the income tax
expense of approximately HK$396.8 million, (iv) a decrease in the selling
expense of approximately HK$29.3 million, (v) a decrease in finance cost
of approximately HK$32.6 million and (vi) a decrease of share of losses
of a joint venture of approximately HK$26.7 million, which was partially
offset by a decrease in the gross profit of approximately HK$1,071.7
million resulting from significant decrease of property sales revenue as
mentioned above. If the one-off and non-recurring reversal of impairment
loss of inventories and the net valuation gain on investment properties
had not been taken into account, the Group would have expected to
record a loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company at a level
similar to last year.

SEGMENT RESULTS

The Group manages its businesses by projects in different geographical
locations. As set out in note 4 to the financial statements, the Group has
two reportable segments, namely the PRC segment and the overseas
segment.
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Financial Review
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The PRC market remained stable during the year. In 2016, the Guilin
Project and Hengli City contributed HK$139 million and HK$111.1 million
to the PRC segment revenue respectively. The PRC segment revenue
and profit decreased from HK$2,078.4 million and HK$1,432.7 million
in 2015 to HK$250.1 million and HK$300.5 million in 2016, respectively.
Such decrease was mainly due to both projects had only a limited
amount of remaining units for sale during 2016 as mentioned above.

The overseas market was confronted with market turbulence and
challenges during the year. Rental income was generated from the
existing properties of the Sydney Project before the start of the
redevelopment plan in 2017. Revenue and gross profit generated from
this project during the year were HK$124 million and HK$51.1 million,
respectively. Besides the Sydney Project and Madrid Project, all projects
in the overseas segment were under the development phase in 2016
and 2015, and therefore no revenue and gross profit were generated.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment significantly decreased by 71.6%
to approximately HK$985.6 million at 31 December 2016 (2015:
approximately HK$3,469.1 million). The decrease was mainly attributable
to (i) approximately HK$1,935.4 million and HK$897.9 million being
reclassified to properties under development and freehold land
respectively, resulting from the change of development plan of the
Sydney Project and (i) reclassification of approximately HK$206.3 million
from the Madrid Project to the assets classified as held for sale, which
was partially offset by the construction in progress of approximately
HK$655.6 million incurred during 2016.

FREEHOLD LAND

Freehold land increased by 27.3% to approximately HK$1,310.7 million
at 31 December 2016 (2015: approximately HK$1,030 million). The
increase was mainly attributable to (i) an addition of approximately
HK$157.5 million from Chicago Project during 2016 and (ii) the
abovementioned reclassification of approximately HK$897.9 million
from the property, plant and equipment resulting from the development
plan changes of the Sydney Project. The increase was offset by the
reclassification of approximately HK$718.1 million from the Madrid
Project to the assets classified as held for sale.
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development increased by 74.2% to approximately
HK$4,357.7 million at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$2,502 million).
The increase was mainly attributable to (i) an addition of approximately
HK$597.7 million from the Chicago Project and (i) the abovementioned
reclassification of approximately HK$1,935.4 million from the property,
plant and equipment of the Sydney Project. The increase was partially
offset by the reclassification of approximately of HK$1,082.3 million to
the assets classified as held for sale from the Madrid Project.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s assets classified as held for sale
amounted to approximately HK$2,032.8 million (2015: Nil), which
represented the respective assets of the Madrid Project to be disposed
of. Details of the disposal of the Madrid Project are set out in the
section headed “Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and
Associated Company” of the Financial Review.

NET ASSETS AND EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded total assets and total
liabilities of approximately HK$16,640.2 million and HK$13,723.4 million
respectively. The Group had net assets of approximately HK$2,916.8
million as at 31 December 2016 as compared to approximately
HK$2,899.1 million as at 31 December 2015. As at 31 December
2016, the equity attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$1,983 million as compared to HK$2,188.9 million as
at 31 December 2015.

12

EXELES

R-E—XRNE+-_A=+—08 Gyl
hN74.2% % 494,357,700,0008 L ( = — H
% :2,502,000,000787T) © FZIBMNEZHRN()
2 IS8 B 8 hn%) 597,700,000 8 7T ¢ K (i) 7B
BIEEWZ - BMERZE s LM EHRED
1,935,400,0008 LT 8K © G INEF D # 2K B
BEREHEADEABIELEZEAEZENHE
#91,082,300,000 B T ATHLEH °

DRABFFEEZEE

MR-Z—XFE+-A=+—8 A&£EHEA
BIEHE 2 EES 54 /452,032,800,000% T
ZE-RFE) HABTHEZBEEE
BZREEE - DEBEERB ZFBEHNY
SRR [ B AR R E AR 2 EAUEE &
B —fhe

BEFENERISE ARG

== N\ 7

PR

RZE—RNE+-_F=+—8 AE@EE
s E kB EED R4 A16,640,200,000 7
JC }13,723,400,0008 ;.- A E B R = F
—RNF+_A=+—BEEZEEFENA
2,916,800,000& 7T - MR T —HF+=H
—+—HB8I%42,899,100,000/87C - R-&
—XNF+ZA=+—8" ARQAEZFBEA
FEIGHER5 495 1,983,000,0008 7T MR- F
—hF+=A=+—HEH]A2,188,900,000/%
5o

BEBERRERQE » —B-AFFH



Financial Review

i AE)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$3,183.4 million as at 31 December 2016 as compared with
HK$2,969 million as at 31 December 2015. About 31%, 28% and
27% of the cash and bank balances were denominated in Renminbi
(“BMB”), United States Dollar (“USD”) and Great Britain Pound (“GBP”)
respectively. The remaining 14% was denominated in Australian
Dollar (“AUD”), Euro (“‘EUR”) and Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”). As at 31
December 2016, the current ratio, which is the quotient arrived at by
dividing current assets by current liabilities, was 1.42 as compared with
1.38 as at 31 December 2015. The gearing ratio, which is the quotient
arrived at by dividing net debts by the aggregate of net debts and total
equity, was 64.3% as at 31 December 2016 as compared with 67.0%
as at 31 December 2015.

BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings from financial institutions
of approximately HK$3,371.8 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$2,890.4 million). These borrowings were denominated in RMB, USD
and GBP. Approximately 48.3% of these borrowings are repayable within
one year. The rest is repayable after one year.

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings from related parties of
approximately HK$266.3 million as at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$330.7 million). These borrowings were denominated in RMB and
HK$. Approximately 87.1% of these borrowings are repayable within one
year. The rest is repayable after one year.

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings from an intermediate holding
company of approximately HK$2,586.1 million as at 31 December 2016
(2015: HK$2,543.2 million). These borrowings were denominated in
GBP and AUD and were repayable from 2018 to 2025. The Group also
had non-interest-bearing borrowings from the same intermediate holding
company of approximately HK$2,207.4 million of which HK$684.4 million
were denominated in USD, HK$1,091.5 million in EUR and HK$431.5
million in AUD as at 31 December 2016. The borrowings denominated in
USD are repayable in 2017 and the borrowings denominated in EUR and
AUD are repayable in 2019.
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As the Group continues to acquire and develop suitable property
projects, different funding venues, including debt, bank loan, and equity,
will be explored. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s contracted
commitment for capital expenditure is approximately HK$5,651.2 million.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE
EXPOSURE

The Group’s business is principally conducted in RMB, GBP, USD, EUR
and AUD. The functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC, the United Kingdom, the United States of America (the “USA”),
Spain and Australia are RMB, GBP, USD, EUR and AUD respectively and
they do not have significant monetary assets or liabilities denominated
in currencies other than their respective functional currencies. The
functional currency of the Group’s other subsidiaries is HK$. The Group
is exposed to currency risk primarily through loans that are denominated
in RMB, GBP, USD, EUR and AUD respectively. The Group maintains
a conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure management.
During the year, the Group did not use any financial instruments to
hedge foreign currency exposure and the Group did not have any
hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2016.

During the year, the Group had interest-bearing borrowings from financial
institutions, related parties and an intermediate holding company.
Accordingly, the Group’s cost of borrowing was affected by changes in
interest rates. As at 31 December 2016, interest-bearing borrowings of
HK$4,795.4 million, being 77% of the total interest-bearing borrowings,
were on a floating rate basis, of which HK$1,423.6 million were loans
from an intermediate holding company. The remaining interest-bearing
borrowings of HK$1,428.8 million were on fixed interest rate basis.
During the year, the Group had monitored the suitability and cost
efficiency of hedging instruments and had considered a mix of fixed and
floating rate borrowings in order to manage interest rate risks. The Group
will prudently consider entering into currency and interest rate hedging
arrangements to minimise such exposures if and when appropriate.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group pledged certain of its assets to
financial institutions in the PRC to secure the loans of approximately
HK$1,820.8 million granted by these financial institutions. The aggregate
carrying value of these building held for own use, construction in
progress, freehold land, prepaid land lease payments, investment
properties, properties under development, completed properties held for
sales and restricted bank deposits as at 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately HK$6.1 million, HK$403 million, HK$255.2 million,
HK$17.3 million, and HK$1,152.4 million, HK$1,734 million, HK$9
million and HK$7.8 million respectively. Besides, the Group also pledged
all of the issued shares of Wanda Madrid to a financial institution in the
PRC to secure a loan granted by this financial institution (the outstanding
amount of which amounted to approximately HK$930.6 million as at 31
December 2016), which has been arranged to be cancelled pursuant
to the disposal of Wanda Madrid as set out in further detail under the
section headed “Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries and
Associated Company” below and the circular of the Company dated 16
December 2016.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

There are no changes in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had provided guarantees in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$551.2 million to banks in favour
of its customers in respect of mortgaged loans provided by the banks
to these customers for their purchase of the Group’s properties. Each
of these guarantees would be released upon the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANY

On 3 November 2016, Wanda Europe and Baraka entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which Wanda Europe has conditionally agreed
to sell, and Baraka has conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Wanda Madrid subject to the terms contained therein
for the consideration of EUR272 million, subject to adjustments to be
made to the consideration by taking into account the amount of cash,
cash equivalents and amount of indebtedness of Wanda Madrid as at
the date of completion. Further details of the disposal is set out in the
circular of the Company dated 16 December 2016. The above disposal
is expected to be completed on 31 March 2017 or such earlier date as
may be agreed in writing between Wanda Europe and Baraka.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had around 244 full time
employees, who are located in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United
Kingdom, Spain, Australia and the USA.

During the year, the Group remunerated its employees based on
their performance, experience and the prevailing market salaries.
Performance related bonuses were granted on a discretionary basis.
Other employee benefits included insurance and medical cover, and
subsidized educational and training programs.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No director of the Company (“Director(s)”) has the right to acquire shares
or debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the matters outlined elsewhere in this report, there have
been no matters that have occurred subsequent to the reporting date
which have significantly affected, or may significantly affect the Group’s
operations, results or state of affairs.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGREER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ding Benxi, aged 62, has been a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board since July 2013. He has also been an executive
director of DWCP since December 2009 and the chairman of the board
of directors of DWCP since December 2012. He is also a director and
the president of Dalian Wanda Group Co., Ltd. (“Dalian Wanda Group”)
and the chairman of Wanda Cultural Group. From December 2009 to
December 2012, he was the president of DWCP. Before joining DWCP
in December 2009, Mr. Ding served in various positions of Dalian Wanda
Group, including president, chief executive officer and vice president.

Mr. Ding completed the correspondence course of Renmin University
of China (FBI AR AKZ) in July 1998. He became a senior engineer of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation (1 Bl 252 T 12481 7))
in August 1997.

Mr. Qi Jie, aged 51, has been a Non-executive Director since July 2013.
Since December 2012, he has been an executive director and president
of DWCP. He currently also serves as a director of Dalian Wanda Group.
He joined Dalian Wanda Group in April 2000 and formerly held various
positions in DWCP, including chief executive officer, vice president,
general manager of the Southern Project Management Center (757718 B
B2, assistant president and general manager of the cost control
department.

Mr. Qi graduated with a master’s degree in philosophy from Dalian
University of Technology (K2 T AEZ) in April 1991. Mr. Qi was
authorized as a Certified Public Accountant by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC (R BIBAELE) in April 1998 and a Certified Tax Agent by
the Bureau of Human Resources of Dalian (now the Bureau of Human
Resources and Social Security of Dalian (KiE ™ A 1 E Rt 2RER))
in May 2000.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSHEERE

Mr. Qu Dejun, aged 53, has been a Non-executive Director since July
2013. From December 2012 to November 2015, he was an executive
director of DWCP, and was redesignated as a non-executive director of
DWCP. He has been the president of Wanda Finance Group Co., Ltd.
(BESRE®ARAR) and the chairman of Wanda Internet Financial
Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (BZ BB A< @R % (L8 BRAQF)
since October 2015. He has also been an assistant to the president of
DWCP and the vice president of Dalian Wanda Group. Before he joined
DWCP in September 2002, Mr. Qu had served as the chief financial
officer in Dalian Fortune Investment Corp., Ltd (K:# ZE S I &E B & &
A R 2 7l) and a chief officer of Dalian Bureau of Foreign Trade and
Economy (KETMEIMEEE F L EE).

Mr. Qu obtained a bachelor’s degree in economics from the Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics (1B 4 AE) in July 1986, and a
master’s degree from the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
in November 1999.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Chaohui, aged 44, has been an Executive Director since July
2013. He was a non-executive director of DWCP from January 2016 to
December 2016. He has also been the vice president of Dalian Wanda
Group since January 2015 and senior vice president from February 2017
onward. Mr. Liu served in various positions in Dalian Wanda Group,
including as the general manager of the investment department, the
assistant to the president and the general manager of the investment
and securities department, a senior assistant to president and a general
manager of the investment management centre, and the chief financial
officer. Also, he served as the secretary of the board of directors and
the general manager of the offshore property centre of DWCP. He was
a director of AMC Entertainment Holding, Inc. in America from August
2012 to September 2015. Before he joined Dalian Wanda Group in
2002, Mr. Liu worked with China Construction Bank, Xiamen Branch,
from September 1996 to August 2001.

Mr. Liu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Chongqing University (EEAZ) in July 1993, a master’s degree in
economics from Xiamen University (EFPTAX2) in July 1996 and a Ph.D.
in management from Xiamen University in June 2004. He was qualified
as a non-practicing certified accountant by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC in December 1997. He also holds a doctorate degree in
management science from Xiamen University (EF9AZ) and is a non-
practising accountant accredited by The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (B zE i 2 5HEI 7).
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Jipeng, aged 61, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since July 2013. He has also been an independent non-
executive director of DWCP from December 2009 to January 2016.
Mr. Liu has 30 years of experience in economic & corporate research.
Mr. Liu has served as the dean of the Business School of the China
University of Political Science and Law (FF Bl B J% K 22 7 £ B7) since
November 2016; the chief, professor and doctoral tutor of the Capital
Research Centre of the China University of Political Science and Law
(FREBUAKREE AL BITZEFT) since 2015; the deputy director of
the independent directors committee of China Association for Public
Companies (A A A1) since 2016 and a vice chairman of the
China Enterprise Reform and Development Society (77 Bl {20k 5 8
ZXEHIITE) since 2012. He has also been a postgraduate tutor at the
Postgraduate Department of the Research Institute for Fiscal Science of
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (7R [0 B/ I 20 B R st 20 58 BTt 98 A 2F)
since 2003. Mr. Liu is currently an independent non-executive director
of China Oceanwide Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 0715).

Mr. Liu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in Economics from the
Beijing School of Economics (1t FALEEZ2ET) in July 1983 and a master’s
degree in Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (F
Fit2RER) in July 1986.

Dr. Xue Yunkui, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since July 2013. He has also been an independent non-
executive Director of DWCP from December 2009 to January 2016. Dr.
Xue has 30 years of experience in accounting research and practice.
He serves as the professor in accounting of the Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business (K ITE&x), the vice president/professor in
accounting of the Shanghai National Accounting Institute (E/8ERE
#HE2%) from 2000 to 2002, the associate dean/professor in accounting
of the School of Accountancy of the Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics (/8B RE@EHERT) from 1998 to 2000 and a post-
doctorate fellow at the School of Accountancy of the Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics (/88 & K& 5H2) from 1996 to 1998.
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Dr. Xue served as an independent director for Shanghai Shentong
Metro Co., Ltd. (L/8FRiEEAR KD BR AT, a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600834) from 2011 to 2016,
and as independent director for Shanghai Baosight Software Co., Ltd.
(BB EEHERMH B AT, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600845) since July 2013, for Dazzle Fashion Co.,
Ltd. (hZEEH %D B R A T) since September 2013 and for Aeon Life
Insurance Company, Ltd. (B F AERE 5 HBR A 7)) since April 2015,
respectively.

Dr. Xue graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics from Sichuan
Finance Institute (P9)11B74€ 6%, now renamed as the Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics (PR 8148 A &) in July 1984. He
received a Ph.D. from the Southwest Agriculture University (FaRS 2%
KEZ now renamed as Southwest University (FAFIAE)) in June 1995
and completed postdoctorate research in accounting with the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (/&8 £ K& in July 1999.

Mr. Zhang Huagiao, aged 54, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since September 2014. He is the Chairman of China Smartpay
Group Holdings Limited (previously known as Oriental City Group
Holdings Limited, stock code: 8325), a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. Zhang is also an independent non-executive director of Yancoal
Australia Limited (stock code: YAL), a company listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange, since April 2014. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Fosun International Limited (stock code: 656), Luye
Pharma Group Ltd. (stock code: 2186), Zhong An Real Estate Limited
(stock code: 672), China Huirong Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
1290), Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 3380)
and Sinopec Qilfield Service Corporation (stock code: 1033), and a non-
executive director of Boer Power Holdings Limited (stock code: 1685),
all of which are companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
From June 1999 to April 2006, Mr. Zhang worked with UBS Securities
Asia Limited, ultimately becoming the managing director and co-head
of the China research team. Between March 2006 and September
2008, Mr. Zhang worked with Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock
code: 604), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as its
chief operating officer. From September 2008 to June 2011, Mr. Zhang
worked with UBS AG (Hong Kong branch) with his last position as
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deputy head of the investment banking department of UBS China and
managing director of UBS AG (Hong Kong branch). Mr. Zhang was an
executive director and chief executive officer of Man Sang International
Limited (stock code: 938), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, between September 2011 and April 2012.

Mr. Zhang obtained a master’'s degree in economics from the Graduate
School of the People’s Bank of China in 1986 and a master’s degree in
development economics from the Australian National University in 1991.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 49, joined the Group in December
2000. She is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible
for the company secretarial affairs of the Group. Ms. Hui has over 20
years of professional experience in public accounting and corporate
finance. She is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She is also a member of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the Hong Kong
Securities Institute.

Mr. Tse Chi Cheung, aged 37, joined the Group in November 2015. He
is the Company’s Deputy Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for the
financial management of the Group. Mr. Tse holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from City University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Tse had held senior positions in an international
accounting firm and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Tse has more
than 10 years of experience in financial management, corporate finance
and auditing.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and the Group are property
development, property leasing, property management and investment
holding activities. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2016
is presented in Chairman’s Statement, Business Review and Financial
Review on page 4, pages 5 to 9 and pages 10 to 17 respectively. The
Financial Review also includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016 in terms of financial
key performance indicators on page 13. Likely future developments
in the Group’s business are disclosed in Chairman’s Statement and
QOutlook section of Business Review which forms part of this Directors’
Report on page 4 and page 9 respectively. The geographical analysis
of the group’s revenue and operating profit is set out in note 4 to the
financial statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in
Business Review and note 41 to the financial statements on pages 5
to 9 and pages 196 to 205 respectively, with financial risk management
policies and practices of the Group covered under the aforesaid note 41
to the financial statements.

The Group is committed to the sound performance of its corporate
social responsibilities and believes that a high standard of performance
is very helpful for maintaining sound relationships between corporate
and society as well as promoting staff confidence. Further discussion
of environmental, social and governance matters, covering the Group’s
environmental policies and performance is set out in Corporate
Governance Report and Environmental, Social and Governance Report
on pages 41 to 60 and pages 61 to 66 respectively.
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The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such rules and
regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators through
effective communications. As mentioned in the Disclosure of Continuing
Connected Transactions on page 36, due to an inadvertent oversight,
the Company had failed to comply with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on Hong Kong Stock Exchange regarding certain
continuing connected transactions upon the signing of the agreements
for such transactions. The Company took steps to comply with the
relevant disclosure requirement by publishing an announcement as
soon as it realised such inadvertent oversight. In order to prevent
occurrence of similar incidents, the Group has taken steps to strengthen
its internal control measures in relation to the monitoring of connected
transactions to ensure compliance with applicable requirements under
the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant rules and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

The Company strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
providing quality services for our customers and collaborating with our
suppliers. To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Company, we take ‘Customer First’ as one
of our core values. We value feedback from customers and have also
established the mechanism in handling customer service, support and
complaints. We also proactively collaborate with our suppliers and
contractors to deliver quality and sustainable products and services. We
have developed certain requirements in our standard tender documents.
These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour practices,
anti-corruption and other business ethics.

The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 75 to 78 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 12.1% of the Group’s total sales in
2016 while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 3.8% of the Group’s total sales in 2016.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers comprised approximately 65% of the Group’s
total purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 41.6% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any interest in the five largest suppliers of the
Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements,
is set out on page 208. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

JOINT VENTURE

Particulars of the Group's joint venture at 31 December 2016 are set out
in note 19 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group
are shown on pages 209 to 212 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong Kong
and certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to pension schemes operated
by the respective governments. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension schemes is to pay the required ongoing
contributions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Liu Chaohui

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Jie

Mr. Qu Dejun

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED"):
Mr. Liu Jipeng

Dr. Xue Yunkui

Mr. Zhang Huagiao

In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company and
code provision A.4.2 in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Ding Benxi,
Mr. Qi Jie and Mr. Qu Dejun will retire as Directors at the Annual General
Meeting. Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Qi Jie and Mr. Qu Dejun, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the annual general meeting.
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All of the directors of the Company have entered into services contracts
with the Company. The term of appointment of Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Qi
Jie, Mr. Qu Dejun, Mr. Liu Chaohui, Mr. Liu Jipeng and Dr. Xue Yunkui is
3 years from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016; the term of appointment of Mr.
Zhang Huagiao is 3 years from 1 September 2014 to 31 August 2017;
each of which is renewable automatically for successive terms of one
year each commencing from the date next after the expiry of the then
current term, unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordnance (“SFO”)), a
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified

as recorded in the register maintained by the

to the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

RAR2REFEEARFFLRESL -
TARBTE  BEREE HERELE - 29
A - BIRSEE BTSRRI ERR=
F AT =FtAZRAEZ—FtAH
B RMEBEREZERNA=F B-F—H
ihﬂ HE-_Z—+F/\A=+—8H " &8
ZERTREMEHERRBEAEBBEN—
F o EEA—AUREREARS —FEL D
R={EA B L& KBEIRSN

BEE AR

E’q\*if*iJr: =t+—B  BAXFARE
&5 MG ED ([E5 RIS GEG]]) % 352 &
Z%EmﬁﬁﬁﬁzyéaEﬂ%ﬁﬁaEﬁEMETEt‘ﬁ@E
EFETRFRXHNEEST R (TRESTRI D M
HEARBREEHR T EFAREIHE
ARKRRA R EBEEE (ERALEFLER
ERBISE XV &E) 2 EimA 2z s T

Interests in shares of DWCP (Note 1) RAREEEZEHHEMMERNDP 2 ER
(Mg=£1)

Approximate

Long percentage of

position/ the issued

short Capacity/Nature Interest in share capital

Name of Director position of interest Shares of DWCP of DWCP

HREBE

RREBE [GE3::7-3

EME 2RITRAZ

EEnA "R/ KR B REEME [igvileslod -5 BYESH

Mr. Ding Benxi Long Beneficial owner 50,000,000 1.10%
TARBEE HE EmEAA

Mr. Qi Jie Long Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.22%
BEREE e BEHEERA

Mr. Qu Dejun Long Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.13%
mfEE L& e BEREAA

Mr. Liu Chaohui Long Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.13%
Gl e BEmEAA
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Notes:

(1)  DWCP, being an indirect holding company of the Company, is an
associated company of the Company under Part XV of the SFO. The
calculation is based on the total number of 4,527,347,600 shares in issue
as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief executive
of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which have been entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or which have been
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company did not have any effective share option scheme during the
year ended and as at 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors nor chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to the Company, the

following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the

Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying

shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant
to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share

capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of

any member of the Group were as follows:

RIERE = KBS IROIRRE
Wz Em MR R

=

MN-ZE—XE+-A=+—8" #AQFF
M ATAT(BEERAAREETHAER
SRR RIBRERGO P B REBEE S LAE
RBIEEXV EP 5 336 5B R AN A Bl 5 2 2
kR - SE RS B M SRR AT A ]
BRTRAEBTEAKE AR ZRERE L&
= 2 T E BB A B 5% sk A £ 2 RS 80K
BT

Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAAT RAAT
IR 15 % AR ERITREZ
BE/EB He/ Ke 5 HERME IR P 2 R s BMAOB
Wanda Commercial Long Beneficial owner 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Properties Overseas
Limited
(“Wanda Overseas”)
BENEMEGIINERAT HE BB A
(T&=EBIN )
Wanda Real Estate Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Investments Limited corporation (Note 1)
EEME e NRIEHER 2 s
KREBRAA (fF7E1)
Wanda HK Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 2)
BERE e AZIRGEE 7 #ea
(Mf5E2)
DWCP Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 3)
NEEEMEME e RRIEHER 2
(Pf3E3)
Dalian Wanda Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 4)
RNEBEEE A REEHER 2 s
(M¥zE4)
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RARAF EARAF
IR0 K 1888 ERTREZ
wE/ A8 "R/ KR B4 EntE [igvileslrd -5 BMAOBES
Dalian Hexing Investment Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 5)
(“Dalian Hexing”)
RNERERERR AT HE IREPEGDER 2 #ES
(TREAE]) (M4 5)
Mr. Wang Jianlin Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 6)
FREMmELE HE MEEGDERE 2 S
(Kizx6)
Mr. Chen Chang Wei Long Beneficial owner 297,460,230 6.33%
(“Mr. Chen”) and held by controlled
corporation (Note 7)
BREE L HE BamEa AR
(TBRSE&D) B EHEE
A (fFE7)
Long Interest of spouse 27,683,423 0.59%
(Notes 7 and 8)
e iR
(MtzE7 % 8)
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni Long Beneficial owner 27,683,423 0.59%
BRI 22+ A EmlEAA
Long Interest of spouse 297,460,230 6.33%
(Note 9)
HE fofBtEs (MizE9)
Ever Good Luck Limited Long Beneficial owner 73,860,230 1.57%
(Note 10)
Ever Good Luck Limited e EnlEA
(KzE10)
Long Trustee 204,237,800 4.35%
HE FEA
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Notes:

Wanda Real Estate Investments Limited holds more than one-third of
the issued shares of Wanda Overseas and is therefore deemed to have
an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which
Wanda Overseas is interested.

Wanda HK holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited and is therefore deemed to have an interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited is deemed to be interested.

DWCP holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda HK and is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company in which Wanda HK is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding
Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, is
an executive director and the chairman of the board of directors of DWCP.
Mr. Qi Jie, being a Non-executive Director, is an executive director of
DWCP. Mr. Qu Dejun, being a Non-executive Director, is a non-executive
director of DWCP. Mr. Liu Chaohui, being an Executive Director, was a
non-executive director of DWCP until 12 December 2016. Mr. Liu Jipeng
and Dr. Xue Yunkui, each being an INED were independent non-executive
directors of DWCP until 29 January 2016.

Dalian Wanda Group holds more than one-third of the issued shares
of DWCP and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which DWCP is deemed to
be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board, is a director and the president of Dalian Wanda
Group. Mr. Qi Jie, being a Non-executive Director, is a director of Dalian
Wanda Group. Mr. Liu Chaohui, being an Executive Director, is the senior
vice president of Dalian Wanda Group.

Dalian Hexing holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Wanda Group and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Wanda Group is
deemed to be interested.

Mr. Wang Jianlin holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Hexing and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Hexing is deemed to be
interested.
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(7)  As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Chen was deemed to have a long position
of 325,143,653 Shares, of which (i) 19,362,200 Shares were beneficially
and legally owned by him, (i) 204,237,800 Shares were held on trust for
him by Ever Good Luck Limited (“Ever Good”), (iii) 73,860,230 Shares were
beneficially owned by Ever Good, and (iv) 27,683,423 Shares were held by
his spouse, Ms. Chan Sheung Ni, as beneficial owner.

8) Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen.

9 Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen. Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Chen is interested.

(10)  The entire issued share capital of Ever Good Luck Limited is ultimately
owned by Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen is the sole director of Ever Good Luck
Limited. See note (7) in the section headed “Discloseable interest and short
positions of shareholders under the SFO” in this Directors’ Report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted the following continuing connected
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and related business (“Kidsland Tenancy Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement dated 8 June 2015
entered into between Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd.
(“Guilin Project Company”) as landlord and Wanda Kidsland Co. Limited
(“Wanda Kidsland”) as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza
in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of five years commencing
from 12 September 2015 to 11 September 2020 for the operation
of children entertainment and playground business and other related
business, including the sale of kids clothing and food and beverage.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Wanda Kidsland is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wang
Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Wanda Kidsland
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2016 was RMB1,458,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB1,350,000.

Leasing of premises for operation of department store and
related business (“Department Store Tenancy Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Department Store Tenancy Agreement dated 28 July
2015 entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and
Guilin Wanda Department Store Co., Ltd. (“Wanda Department Store”)
as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City,
the PRC, was leased for a term of 10 years commencing from 12
September 2015 to 11 September 2025 for the operation of department
store business and related business, including sale of food and beverage
and restaurants.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Department Store is indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Wang Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
Wanda Department Store is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The Department Store Tenancy Agreement was terminated on 30 June
2016 by mutual consent due to the closure of certain stores by Wanda
Department Store pursuant to a strategic store network optimization
initiative. As set out in the announcement of the Company dated 12
October 2016, it was estimated that the annual cap of the total amounts
receivable by the Guilin Project Company under the Department Store
Tenancy Agreement would have been RMB5,492,000. The amount
incurred by Wanda Department Store pursuant to the Department
Store Tenancy Agreement for the six months ended 30 June 2016 was
approximately RMB2,115,000.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

HE-_Z—XR"F+_A=+—HLFE RE
RSB EHRIE TENEMIBE ARHSLE
ZFE FRAANRYA,458,0007T  MELEZ
ERSEAHARE1,350,0007T °

HEMRUEEAERBERE (8

EHEE )

BIEEMIER AR (EAEE) BENEERE
BRAR(BERE]  EAHEP)R=F—HA
FLAZTN\RBIILZEBEEHERZ - BB
FPEEMTEMNRTES S TS ERE
ERNCEEEMSEBRBAER - 2FHE
ERMERXHKEE HHA-_ZT—AF A
+—ARE-ZZTE-_RAFALA+—HI EH
104 »

EMEERARRAAFIZHEZKIEZEMBL
A - ARBERERARR ZERBR R
FAEFZRE2ERR  BRELEHARR - &8
ERARBZEEANL -

MR EITR B R MAERE(EE  BEEE
FRERETETEERSNESE  LEHA
T AEHERHEER T —R"FRAA=1H
BIE - A RRHBAZE—RE+A+Z
Hz NEFTE - MmEtEMIER ARREEER
EMBRER BB FELREAARE
5,492,0007 - RIEAEHEHH  BE_T
—RNFERA=ZTHIEAREAR BEBEEAZ
SN R/ARE2,115,0007T °

33



Directors' Report
EEEHRES

Leasing of premises for operation of cinema and related
business (“Cinema Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Cinema Tenancy Agreement dated 8 September 2015
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Wanda
Cinema Line Co., Ltd. (“Wanda Cinema”) as tenant, certain portions of
the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of
20 years commencing from 12 September 2015 to 11 September 2035
for the operation of cinema business and related business, including sale
of food and beverages.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Cinema is indirectly wholly-owned by Dalian
Wanda Group which is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Wanda
Cinema is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December

2016 was RMB3,043,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB2,527,000.

Review by and Confirmation of INEDs

The INEDs have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions,
and confirmed that such transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and
(8) according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements,

which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.
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Confirmation by the Auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged

the auditors of the Company to perform certain work on continuing

connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong

Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements

Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and

with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing

Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors of

the Company have confirmed by way of a letter to the Board that, for the
year ended 31 December 2016:

(1)

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in this annual report, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that such
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
set and disclosed by the Company.
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Disclosure of Continuing Connected Transactions

Due to an inadvertent oversight, the Company failed to comply with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
regarding the aforesaid continuing connected transactions at the time
of the signing of the aforesaid tenancy agreements. The Company has
taken steps to comply with the disclosure requirements by publishing
an announcement as soon as it realised such inadvertent oversight.
Further details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated
27 September 2016 and 12 October 2016, respectively. Save as set out
above, the Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with
the applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with
regard to the related party transactions set out in note 38 to the financial
statements which were also connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
Directors/employees of the company are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2016, the interest of Directors and their respective
associates in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with business of the Group:

EERDEBROHES E
=Pl

EERhEReHESE(REZHEFBEEHN
SRR TR 10 ©

EENBRERB 2R

RZE—RF+ZA=+—H FEKHEEH
S8R AT BN ER [ S 75 (T B IR Bk ) B AK
DR HAIREER R F ZEF PRSI T

Name of Director/

Nature of interest in

Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
EE HMEAME NEER REZAFPHEREZME EANCIPE S
Mr. Ding Benxi DWCP Being a director and Engaging in property
shareholder with development, property
1.10% interest lease, property
management and
investment holding
TARBRE RESEEEME BEEERLRER WEMERE -
HE1.10% xS EEI-YES
BB RIREER
Mr. Qi Jie DWCP Being a director and Engaging in property
shareholder with development, property
0.22% interest lease, property
management and
investment holding
EREAE NEEEERUE BEEFELKRR EEmEmME -
HH0.20% s MEEE - W%
BIEMIREER
Mr. Qu Dejun DWCP Being a director and Engaging in property
shareholder with development, property
0.13% interest lease, property
management and
investment holding
BEA A RNEEEBRIME EEERLRER =R -
B 0.13% MHEEE - W%
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Name of Director/
associate

B HMEALER

Name of company
NCIECT

Nature of interest in
the company
REATHEZZME

Business of
the company
EANCIPA +3

Mr. Liu Chaohui

SIFAE L4

Mr. Liu Jipeng

Blache s

Dr. Xue Yunkui

BEERLT

Notes:

(1) Mr. Liu Chaohui was a non-executive director of DWCP from 29 January (1)

2016 to 12 December 2016.

2) Both Mr. Liu Jipeng and Dr. Xue Yunkui retired as independent 2)

DWCP

REBERRUME

DWCP

RNEBERFRBE

EH\\
F“H

DWCP

REEERRME

EE‘L
W

non-executive directors of DWCP on 29 January 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, save as disclosed above, none of the

Being a shareholder
with 0.13% interest
(Note(1))

HHEOA3% R
A% R
(P E (1))

Being an independent
non-executive director
(Note(2))

EOEFTES
(HFE @)

Being an independent
non-executive director
(Note(2))

EOEFTES
(FfEE©2)

E -

Engaging in property
development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding

=M -
MEEE - M
EIE RIREER

Engaging in property
development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding

=R -
MERE - W%
BB R

Engaging in property
development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding

WEEMERE -
MEEE - W%
BIE MR EER

BB EER —E-—RF-A-TABEZ

E-RET_ATZBARRKEBEREME
ZIFBITESE -

LB EERBEEEE TN T —NF—

AZthBREXREBEREMEZ B
WiTEE -

RZTB—RF+ZA=1T—8 " BLXFAHEE

Directors or their respective associates was interested in any business BN - BUREESHE BB R AREREARSE

which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with

business of the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
that all the INEDs to be independent.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, subject to the relevant statutes,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless by the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they incur in the execution of their
duty or supposed duty. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and remained in force as
of the date of this report.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained insurance for
the Directors against liabilities to third parties that may be incurred in the
course of performing their duties as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS

KPMG retired as auditors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2014. Ernst & Young were appointed by the Directors and
an ordinary resolution was passed at the Annual General Meeting held
on 29 May 2014 to fill the casual vacancy so arising. During the year,
Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the Company’s auditors for the year
ended 31 December 2016 at the Company’s Annual General Meeting
held on 15 June 2016 and to hold office until the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
LIU Chaohui
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 8 March 2017
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential for the effective management, a healthy corporate culture and
balancing of business risk. And it is also essential to the success of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) during the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016
as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Except for deviation
from CG Code provision A.6.7 as explained in the relevant paragraphs
on page 45 in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2016.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including one Executive
Director, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company has maintained three Independent
Non-executive Directors which represent over one-third of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2016. The Board’s composition
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report is set out as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Liu Chaohui
Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Qi Jie
Mr. Qu Dejun

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Jipeng
Dr. Xue Yunkui
Mr. Zhang Huagiao

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their respective fields of
expertise and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 18 to
22. There are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
amongst the Directors.
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BOARD PRACTICE

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the Company
is managed, its strategic direction and performance. There is a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved to and delegated by the Board.
The Board has given clear directions to the management team that
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the Board:

—  Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
—  Dividend distribution or other distributions;

—  Treasury, accounting and remuneration policies;

— Review on internal control system and risk management;

—  Changes to major group corporate structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement;

— Notifiable transactions and non-exempted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions;

—  Proposed transactions requiring shareholders’ approval;
—  Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities;

— Joint-ventures with outside party involving capital commitment
from the Group of over 5% of the relevant size test of the
Company; and

—  Financial assistance to Directors.

Day-to-day operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s
decisions and strategy are delegated to the Company’s management
team.

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, has ensured that the
Board adheres strictly to all rules and requirements for its meetings and
the maintenance of full and proper records. Procedures are established
for every Director to have access to Board papers and related
information, to have the services of the Company Secretary, and to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon
reasonable request.
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The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensures that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publications of such
financial statements.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016,
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s
annual and interim results. At least 14 days’ notice is given for all regular
Board meetings together with the meeting agenda such that all Directors
are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
In addition, one general meeting was held during the year ended 31
December 2016 and attendance of each Director at these meetings is
set out as follows:

%ABHEI/EE,\/EQK”AETZHM%%%% i
FEREN QAE BRMER 2 T ERRmEM
FX i%AﬁﬁﬁE%&HﬁWﬁm—rﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

BE_ZT-—R"E+-_A=+—HLFER &
%Aeﬁfﬂiuﬁéﬁ AR AR B BEE
BEA R 2B R RER - WERM RAEAEE
ZERERTHERE MBEFERERESENS
RExd OB ELER S RIZARA - A
CHAEEFIARENERANMANRER -
AN REBEZZ—R"FT_A=1T—HLF
FERERT—RARRAE  REFHFEZES
& IEREHNT

Number of Number of
Board meetings general meetings
Attended/held Attended/held
Exggmiy™ RERAEIRE
HE BT HE R
Executive Director: BITES
Mr. Liu Chaohui G 5/5 1/1
Non-executive Directors: EHITES .
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBILE(EE) 4/5 1/1
Mr. Qi Jie RS E 5/5 0N
Mr. Qu Dejun HEE L 4/5 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: B IEHITES :
Mr. Liu Jipeng Bt 4/5 0/
Dr. Xue Yunkui BEEEL 4/5 0N
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao KAAB I E 4/5 11
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CG Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings. Due to other business engagements, certain Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors did not attend the
annual general meeting. Please refer to the preceding table for details of
attendance of the Non-executive Directors and the Independent Non-
executive Directors.

General meeting is one of the channels for communication between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The Company’s auditors,
were available to answer questions at the annual general meeting held
on 15 June 2016. Other than the general meetings, the shareholders
may also communicate with the Company through the contact
information listed on the Company’s website. Measures for effective
communication between the Board and the shareholders are described
in the paragraphs under “Communication with Shareholders” and
“Shareholders’ Rights” in this report.

Mr. Ding Benxi was appointed as Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company on 3 July 2013, and Mr. Liu Chaohui was appointed
as Executive Director of the Company on 3 July 2013. Whilst the
Company has not appointed a chief executive officer, the duties of the
chief executive officer have been performed by Mr. Liu Chaohui, the
Executive Director of the Company. The Board considers that the current
arrangement is adequate in view of the size and complexity of the
Group’s operations. The Board will consider appointing chief executive
officer at an appropriate stage when the Group has increased the size of
operation.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in Board and committee meetings brings
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests
of all shareholders.

The Company has three Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors representing over one-third of the Board. One
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016
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Director an annual confirmation of his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.

According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Qi Jie and Mr. Qu Dejun,
are three years from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016, and are renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the Non-
executive Director or the Company.

According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are three years, from 3 July
2013 to 2 July 2016 for Mr. Liu Jipeng and Dr. Xue Yunkui, and from
1 September 2014 to 31 August 2017 for Mr. Zhang Huagiao. The
terms of appointment for all Independent Non-executive Directors
are renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each
commencing from the date next after the expiry of the then current term,
unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the Independent Non-executive Director or the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established and adopted a written nomination procedure
(the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process and criteria for
the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company. The Nomination Committee shall, based on those criteria as
set out in the Nomination Procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment etc.), identify and recommend the
proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the
new Directors more detailed information on the Group’s business and
activities.
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According to Clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became Directors on the same day shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any
general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.
Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

According to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules,
all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to
the Directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agree to
waive any remuneration during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nomination
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference,
which are available on the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions
of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where
appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting,
as mentioned on pages 43 to 45 in the section “Board Practice” above,
have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as practicable.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2016 to, among other things, assess the
performance of executive Director, review and discuss the existing policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors, and the remuneration
packages of the Directors. The members of the Remuneration
Committee and the attendance of each member at the committee
meeting are set out as follows:

FWEES

FMZEeBFELAR—REF - KR-F
—ANEFRBRIT-REZEEEE  U(HBERE)
AHERTEREZRE R MIREFREFZ
FENER R 288 - A RE R ZH BB o HrB
REEZKEBUREKBHERZEGSHZE
SLETIEAR -

Number of
Committee meetings
attended/held

ZERSERAH
Committee member ZE2KE HE BT
Mr. Liu Jipeng (Chairman) Rk (/) 11
Mr. Qi Jie RS 1/1
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RERB LA 11

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been established
since June 2005 to comply with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three members, including
a Non-executive Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors,
with the chairmanship being assumed by an Independent Non-executive
Director. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board'’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors and senior management;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the group of which the Company is a member company;

to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration of the

members of the senior management who are not Directors are within the

following bands:

FZEe T RABNKBER

(i)

(iv)

(vii)

(viil)

HRARRBEENBREEABZ2BE
FM R SR M 2888 - Rl AR SLIE AR M AL B
B2 RFHITHMEER  AESERE
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e
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AERIRITEERSREERE 2 HMEF
BRESRROES
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o
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REBENRARRRKERRZER
ME A B 2 (8 PR G MT

BRI EARTEERBREREY
R 18 26 S AR L BT S 254 2 B
ST A 3 B ST 2 5 T AR
REFSRYBETE R

BRMEEEAETMBRASEETE
HARG 25 -

BE_ZT—RF+-_A=1+—BILFE  W3F
EEoREEBKRE ZFHMNFIATEE

Number of individuals

Total remuneration bands (HK$) FENazEEE (BT) A
HK$2 million or below 2,000,000 7T A~ 2
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meet at least twice each year. In 2016, the Audit
Committee met two times to, among other things, consider the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2015
and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 June
2016, discuss with the auditors of the Company on internal control,
risk management, compliance with rules and regulations, auditors’
independence, auditors’ remuneration and the scope of work in relation
to the annual audit. The members of the Audit Committee and the
attendance records of each member at the committee meetings in 2016
are set out as follows:

BEREES
EVLZEeBFELAMMAER - BZEE
BRI ARFERITMAEE  N(EFPE
B)EZRASEEBEZE _T—AF T _A=1—

BUEMBRFEZFEEENASERE T
—RERA=ZTRHIEANERZ R EAZAE - AR
NEZEEN RN R R - BRETR - BT
AR BIEIER - RERDIE LM - B EAD H B
NREEBZYBTEHE - R_T—RF  FZZ
BEREULERELFELZEGER 2B
FIT

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held

ZERSRAH

Committee member E3=}-§54-1 HE BT

Dr. Xue Yunkui (Chairman) BESERLT(EE) 2/2

Mr. Qi Jie RS 2/2

Mr. Zhang Huagjiao RERB LA 2/2
The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms RRABIEKRUEZEZES  RIEBEAEEATH

of reference in accordance with the requirements of the CG Code for
the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The Audit Committee
is comprised of one Non-executive Director and two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Qi Jie, Dr. Xue Yunkui and Mr. Zhang
Huagiao.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

()  to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors;

(i)  to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and

objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

50

ZREAEEARRYIAERESRE - s &
EEAREZMHRERF RAREE - FX

ZEEm—RINTEZLMEEULIFNTE

EERELE  BEEHELIRNRBAEERK -

BERZBeCIRACNMEE

() ZEINEZBEMZEE BHEENE
% WABFERIERS

(i) IREARIRER MEERINEZEET R
BEUEBIMZBEFEEBAR

BEBERRERQE » —B-AFFH



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

(viil)

()

(i)

to approve the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication quarterly reports and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

to liaise with the Board and senior management and must meet
with the Company’s auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control system with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty
to have effective internal control and risk management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to ensure coordination between the internal and external auditors;

to review the external auditors’ management letter;

to ensure the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letter; and

to review reports on the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in this report.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any matter

under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent

professional advice. It is given full access to and assistance from

management and reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly.

The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors at least twice

every year.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2016 to, among other things, review
the composition of the Board, consider the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the retirement and re-election
of directors. The members of the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of each member at the committee meeting are set out as
follows:

= = =
}Egiﬁg
RAZESBFAEELAM—REH N

—RFERIT-RREEERE  W(EHTEE)
BREFE AR BRBLIIFNTEEZHE

YHANEREZRIENREE - ZRREGKE
URERBHERZEEERZBENHIIMT

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held
EEEERRE
Committee member ZE2KE HE BT
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBILE () 1/1
Mr. Liu Jipeng Bl s £ 1/1
Dr. Xue Yunkui BEEEL 1/1

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in June 2005. It currently consists of three members,
including a Non-executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

()  to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the

selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(i)  to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;
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(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

(v)  to review the board diversity policy of the Board and to make
disclosure of its review results in this report; and

(vi)  to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time by prescribed by the Board, or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or
any applicable law or regulation.

Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length service.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. According to A.5.6 of the CG Code, the above board diversity
policy of the Company has been approved by the Board and adopted by
the Nomination Committee on 23 August 2013.

The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least once a year to
review the diversity of the Board and discuss the measurable objectives,
including knowledge, appropriate professional qualifications, relevant
business background and experience, skills, related management
expertise and independence of directors, and give recommendation
to the Board. During the year, the Nomination Committee takes the
view that the measurable objectives were achieved to a large extent. It
pays particular attention on the cultural and educational background,
professional and technical experience, and skills of the members of
Board and also reviewed the composition between Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so to ensure appropriate
independence inside the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Group’s finance department, the financial statements
of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Group. The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as going concern.

The report of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, and their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 67 and 74.

External Auditors' Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditors to ensure the objectivity in the financial statements.
Members of the Committee are of the view that the Company’s external
auditors are independent. During the year, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors are set out as follows:

FENEZ
B ER

EFERANSNAEET B Z BB TREA
SEPBHRER 2 EE - WHERERMEHRRGTE)
EBERISEM 2 Gt ER - ERINFELR MBS 3
ASEZBHHHRE - EFKIEL—YIEESE
ARFER - URERMA - IERAAE - EFYL
TNHBBEAERTHBEZE - HABER A
EARRBHEFEREELE 2N FEEREM
ZEFHAR

ARRINEZBEN L K GFTENVEISZ IS K&
HUAEEP BRI ZERTEHNEETR
K74 B2 B ZBENRE -

SNERRBET 2 B M R

B EGREREERINEREEN 2B -
IR SRR FEMN - TEENERA/AR
NAZINEZ AN BB - RER - BFR
e AR BISMNEZEED 2 Bl 2 EFI T -

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Group mAEEREHZ RE B EAER
HK$'000

FAET

Audit services ZEARTS 1,063
Review of interim report EHR B S 155
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Group’s system of risk management and internal control includes
a defined management structure with limited authority, and is designed
to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provisions of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is put in place to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board has conducted review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during the
year ended 31 December 2016 including financial, operational controls
and risk management functions and ensured the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
for the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions. The Board
has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and considered them to be effective and adequate.

In relation to the Board’s risk management and internal control
functions, the Board fulfils its duties by determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company by reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, developing and monitoring the codes of
conduct applicable to employees and the Directors of the Company,
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report, and receiving and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management of the Company. Where any significant risks are
identified, the Board will evaluate and manage such risks by considering
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results,
the probability that the risk will occur and the imminence of the risk.

The Group does not have an internal audit function, but instead shares
and benefits from the internal audit function of its parent, DWCP,
which operates an internal audit function for all of its subsidiaries,
including the Group. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the efficiency and effectiveness
of the current internal audit arrangement. The situation will be reviewed
from time to time.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

Bk eI R A EBEEE

EEEEHAEARARERFERZARE
BRABEIE RS - ARBZEREE AR
EERGEEATEEBRB ZENEE 1
SHEEREBRR  REBENADREEERE
REE - BREE 2 @R SR AE
R A 52 2 MIE B R A BB E R s B oM E k-
WARFEE T AREDI R » DB SR 2 &
SArE(BEXIFBY) REYBEAKRERML
Bk REE(EXIERHEER) BERRK
AEAEEREEER AR - ESENEE—
E-RFTA=t—BILFERHLEER

REENAREERGETIRY - BREME
SEEENEAREERE  YREAEEES

FERBSIERBEE T MM ER BETEEME
B A RBEHARA EFENERE
RRERE N AREEARNERE - BEZF
RFHRER TR -

AREFeNRREBMAGEERE 5
SERBEMMEEARRE BT AREET
ERANBERTBHIABIE RN R RDRIEHEK - %
RUERBERANRARBDBRIMNESENTRT
A BERAQTETEERE ATER LD
EERMEPHRBEBR  EXNEEARAE
F SREBABNEINSEEXRRES
THABITRE - iIRFMEAER - EFEH
BEERZERRBREARBMBEETENE
Bi2E - ZEFRRE ARG ANBN S A R
B ARHEMEEZERR

AREREA A NEBERT BRI - BEXEA
HERARAEEEREME (REMBNBR
A (BRAKE) BEFERMERBELET) 2R
EFTBRE - EF SR ARTRREE R
NRPESIE R Z AR - BRTRRENE R ZA
BB L 2R - BABRAEE
R BB AT BREBEFT - ANEREK TR IR X

B

55



Corporate Governance Report
SREARE

The Group has adopted procedures for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner and in compliance with the SFO,
such procedures are subject to review on a regular basis.

Directors' Training

Pursuant to CG Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary. Individual Directors also
participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials.

All the Directors (namely, Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Qi Jie, Mr. Qu Dejun, Mr. Liu
Chaohui, Mr. Liu Jipeng, Dr. Xue Yunkui, and Mr. Zhang Huagiao) have
participated in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant records
to the Company. The Directors developed and updated their knowledge
and skills through participation in the training programmes, which in turn
ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the Board.
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Company Secretary's Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary
must take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided her training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good and effective
communication with its shareholders. Information in relation to the Group
is disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim reports, annual reports,
announcements, notices and circulars, which are published to the
Company’s own website.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the Company’s shareholders.
The Chairman actively seeks to participate at the AGM and personally
chair the AGM to answer any questions from the Company’s
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM circular is
distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting
out details of each propose resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. The Chairman explains the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM, and (except where
a poll is demanded) reveals how many proxies for and against have been
received in respect of each resolution.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Company’s
shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda. A copy of the Company’s Bye-Laws is
available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company, or not less than 100 shareholders, can put
forward a proposal at a general meeting of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda. The requisition
specifying the proposal, duly signed by the requisitionists, together with
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's relevant expenses.

The procedure for shareholders to nominate a person for election as a
Director of the Company is also available on the Company’s website.
Subject to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any shareholder wishing to
nominate an individual for election as a Director of the Company at the
AGM shall, no later than 7 days prior to the relevant general meeting,
submit a completed form of nomination to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong, and in default the form of nomination
submitted shall be treated as invalid. Any such form of nomination shall
be accompanied by a biographical profile of each proposed nominee
and a written statement from the proposed nominee consenting to
be nominated and, if nominated and elected, consenting to serve as
a Director of the Company. The biographical profile of each proposed
nominee shall include at least the following information: (i) full name, age
and address of the proposed nomineg; (i) past and present directorships
(if any) and employment of the proposed nominee; (iii) the information as
required to be include in the announcement of the Company under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Enquiries from shareholders to the Board

In order to ensure effective communication between the Company’s
shareholders and the Board, the Company adopted the shareholders
communication procedures on 28 February 2012. According to the
shareholders communication procedures, the Board is responsible for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with the Company’s shareholders
and in particular, use AGMs or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation. The chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the Independent Non-executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination and any other Committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the chairman should invite another member
of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

The chairman of the independent board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing, whose contact details are as follows:

The Board of Directors

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Unit 3007, 30th Floor

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

The Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company will

consider the enquiries and concerns raised by the shareholders and
reply as appropriate.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code but about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders are also welcome.
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In 2016, the Group was committed to the performance of its corporate
social responsibilities to a high standard and believes that high standard
of corporate social responsibilities are very helpful for maintaining sound
relationships between corporate and society as well as promoting staff
confidence. In addition to its focus on its business development in
2016, the Group has proactively undertaken its social responsibilities to
contribute to the construction of a harmonious society.

QUALITY OF WORKING ENVIRONMENT

The Group considers excellent staff to be a key factor for business
growth and sustainable development of an enterprise, while diligent
staff can also render quality products and services to customers of the
Group, hence contributing to the community. To safeguard employees’
occupational health and safety, the Company works hard to provide
a safe, healthy and comfortable working environment by providing
relevant protective equipment such as helmets, safety belts, masks and
protective clothing at our project sites. Therefore, the Group provides
a sound and safe working environment for its employees and pays
attention to the balance between work and healthy life of employees.
The Group also encourages and supports its employees to attend on-
job training and further education.

The Group has established and maintained fair and comprehensive
employment policies and practice to provide equal opportunity and
career development to all our employees. The Group adheres to an open
and transparent process of recruitment, and provides a competitive
remuneration package to its employees, which is subject to adjustment
in respect of the individual performance, contribution of each employee,
and market condition on an annual basis. Employment conditions also
include a number of other benefits, such as medical insurance and
retirement plan. The Group has a well-defined promotion channel and
proportion for its employees, and hire of child labor and forced labor
are strictly prohibited, with all labour, recruitment, dismissal and other
employment related matters in compliance with the laws, regulations and
policies in the place where the business operation is located.

The Group expects to grow together with its employees, and attaches
great importance to their development. In 2016, the Group offered
over 30 training courses for its employees to enhance their job skills,
and more than 90 employees attended these trainings. Other training
expenses amounted to approximately RMB300,000. In addition, the
Group allowed its employees to reimburse the expenses required to
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maintain their professional qualifications, providing adequate resources
support for its employees to improve their expertise. The Group also
provides continuous professional development training to its directors
and senior management to enable them to develop and update their
knowledge and skills, including provision of updated information on
corporate governance and regulatory development and requirements to
them.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is a keen supporter of environmental protection. To enhance
environmental sustainability, eco-friendly measures were implemented
and practices for effective use of resources to reduce wastage were
introduced in the operation and management of the Group’s businesses.

As a property developer, the Group is committed to the implementation
of green building. All of our projects minimize the raw materials wastage
and energy use through enhancing construction efficiency. We have also
actively implemented eco-friendly measures to minimize carbon emission
and water usage in our business and operations. We are also engaging
professional companies to dispose of any hazardous wastes generated
during construction. We believe that the Group is in compliance in all
material aspects with applicable environmental laws and regulations of
the countries we are operating in. In China, green building is to increase
our conservation efforts in terms of energy, land resources, water and
raw materials and other efforts in terms of environmental protection and
reducing pollution in the whole life cycle, in order to provide the general
public with healthy, suitable and efficient open space that is consistent
with the nature, as required by Evaluation Standard for Green Building
(hrEEETEIZE)) (GB/T 50378-2006) issued by the Ministry of
Construction of the PRC. In 2016, the Group’s Wanda Plaza project
in Guilin maintained the One-star Green Building Design Certification
granted by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the
PRC in 2015.

In addition, the Wanda Plaza project in Guilin also uses Huiyun
management system to save energy. Huiyun management system is one
of the integrated plaza management systems developed by DWCP. The
system is an integrated system comprising 16 subsystems, covering fire-
fighting, security, equipment, operation and energy conservation. With
the system, energy consumption by electric and mechanic system is
reduced.
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The Group is also committed to maintaining the sustainable development
of the ecological environment in the course of project construction
overseas. The Group’s project in Gold Coast, Australia is currently under
construction. The sea sand generated during the excavation stage was
backfilled to local beaches after being filtered to help local municipal
government solve sand backfilling work. All hazardous substances
found during the project demolition and excavation stage were
removed by category, which obtained certification from the Queensland
environmental authorities in Australia.

The Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Methodology (“BREEAM”), an environmental sustainability building
assessment system in the UK, is a globally leading sustainability
assessment method for overall project planning, infrastructure and
building, which encourages innovative and effective use of resources
by developers. BREEAM'’s focus on value and efficiency of sustainability
enables its certified developers to usually create a sustainably good
environment and make people living and working in this environment feel
more comfortable. The Group’s London Project in the UK is currently
under construction, whose construction is in strict compliance with
BREEAM'’s VERY GOOQOD grade standards and requirements. The project
has received BREEAM’s VERY GOOD pre-assessment during the design
phase and a final assessment will be conducted after the completion of
construction.

U.S. Green Building Council (‘“USGBC”), a well-known green building
group, is committed to promoting sustainable development of building
and construction industry. Its initiative, namely Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design (“LEED”), is a world-renowned and widely used
green building certification program. The program conducts assessment
based on building design, construction, operation, maintenance
and sustainable development, which can effectively assist building
operators and owners in mitigating impacts on the environment and
making efficient use of resources. The Group’s Chicago Project in the
United States is currently under construction, whose construction is in
compliance with LEED’s silver grade standards and requirements.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

BN - REE B A EERIE B 8RR REF
ERRIRIBM AT FIERE - AEBRAFE
=eBFMIER BATEMESRSY - AT HEZ
FEERZH RS BRI R EIR S 08 - B
Eﬁ%imﬁﬁkﬂ?ﬁtrﬁix/éﬁ@fﬁﬁlf’ﬁ o BAIE B IF
2 FERBEENEENDEEER - I

Eﬁiyﬁlkﬂﬁﬁﬁi%%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁF'ﬂ RFE o

R AR & A R A I A T 1 28 E Building
Research Establishment Environmental
Assessment Methodology ([ BREEAM ) 2
RAFNEEBRETER - ERRBTEEY
B RIFFE MR 0% - BB REAIETA
BROGAAEIR ° EiﬁT#iit{E{E&ﬂ% s
B{P G BREEAMRE 2 E R B B A AlER
BRI ERIF AR BRI AR M T
AR ET RS - REE N EENRIUER
B AT IEFE R ® EP H# R BRI 1Z AR BREEAMAY
VERY GOOD RIREFNEKKATT © IR A

BERER fﬂ%Exz% BREEAM EI’JVERY GOOD
AT - Emlnm@: 1% & 5 17 BREEAM
B AR -

EE4EEZESEZE U.S. Green Building Council
(TUSGBCJ) REZMBEEER W
RERBEMBETENAIFELER - HHEH
#) Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design ([LEED]) Rttt R AZ R EZEARN

RO IRERERTE o WETEIRIEEMNRGT - B
E e EE - MR IFERRETIE - B

M E RS EFMETRDEIRENT
2 WHBMAAER AEEMAREEK

CINSFIHEE BATIEE &R T - HEREZLR
LEED AYIR AR IR ER ESRINT ©

63



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

I%i:% %j:é& /El#&l:l

In addition, the Group also endeavors to take environmental measures in
its daily operation, such as disposal of work garbage by category; dual-
side printing to the greatest extent when printing documents to save
paper; electronic management and filing of drawings, reports, contracts
and other documents supplemented by paper-based approach; lighting
controlled by the Building Management System (BMS) for majority
of leased offices to save energy; and strong recommendation and
encouragement to staff who go out for work to use public transportation
after taking efficiency into consideration.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Working closely with suppliers, the Group is committed to achieving and
maintaining a high standard of openness, probity and accountability. The
members and employees of the Group are required to comply with the
anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies developed by the Group. The
Group encourages employees and all persons who deal with the Group,
including customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors, to proactively
report any suspected impropriety, misconduct or malpractice within the
Group, and rewards meritorious person, which is incorporated into the
internal management system.

Any forms of bribery and corruption are strictly prohibited by the Group
in the tender process. The process is closely monitored to prevent
corruption, including bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
Employees are reminded to avoid situations that may lead to and involve
a conflict of interest. The Group’s suppliers are rigorously reviewed.
The engagement and appointment of each supplier is subject to the
primary selection in accordance with the internal management process
of the Group. The Group then invites market public tender or directly
appoints suppliers as appropriate, with strict internal audit of the
process. For suppliers under public tender, the Group adopts public
tending procedures in line with the market practice. After screening, the
Group engages or appoints the supplier upon recommendation from
the tendering group. For suppliers that might be directly appointed,
the Group appoints based on the conditions for direct appointment
stipulated in the internal operating manual. For suppliers under
exceptional circumstances but required direct appointment, the Group
is required to conduct critical internal audit and strictly controls the
number of direct appointment of such suppliers under exceptional
circumstances, and assesses relevant senior management during the
internal assessment at the end of the year.
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To maintain a fair and efficient business and working environment,
the Group emphasizes the importance of anti-corruption practices. It
is the Group’s policy that any form of corruption will not be tolerated.
Employees are prohibited to request, receive or accept any forms of
benefits from any persons, companies or organizations having business
transactions with the Group. During the year, the Group also sought
training resources from the Independent Commission Against Corruption
to assist senior management and employees to understand corruption-
preventing practices and guidelines, so as to remind them to comply
with personal and business conducts and strictly abide by laws and
regulations where it operates.

The Company is committed to a socially responsible supply chain
management system. The Company has implemented a strict selection
process on its suppliers and sub-contractors, taking into consideration
such elements as supplier qualification, past performance, financial
strength and price. The Company only works with qualified suppliers and
sub-contractors and, for the duration of any arrangement with a supplier
or sub-contractor, the Company closely supervises its performance and
provides feedback where necessary.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group values quality to ensure customer satisfaction in terms
of our products and services. We have dedicated teams to respond
to customer enquiries before and after sales and our projects have
enhanced the quality of our properties sold and management services
through eco-friendly building designs and operational measures. We
believe that the Group is in compliance in all material aspects with
applicable laws and regulations such as health and safety, advertising
and privacy matters in the countries which we operate.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is of the opinion that as part of the community, it has the
responsibility to seek well-being and prosperity for the region. During
the year, the Group actively participated in community engagement,
creating 76 direct employments. The Group organized a total of 5
volunteer activities during the year, including care for disabilities and
charity marathon. All of our employees actively took part in the events
and the number of participants reached 62 in total. In addition, the
Group showed care to local disadvantaged groups in different places of
operation. During the year, the Group’s Gold Coast in Australia donated
AUD75,000 to Australian Children’s Cancer Foundation. Moreover,
with respect to culture promotion, National Library of Australia held the
exhibition event “Celestial Empire: Life in China, 1644-1911” ()& » A&
A B A JE 1644-19117) in the early 2016. To give locals the opportunity
to learn more about the history of China, the Group’s Sydney project in
Australia provided strong support and acted as the main sponsor of the
exhibition.

Going forward, the Group will continue to identify new opportunities
to further incorporate the principles of sustainable development and
community enhancement into the business development of the Group.
The Group will continue to support disadvantaged groups, strengthen its
partnership with charities and volunteer organizations and further nurture
a culture of giving within the community.
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To the shareholders of
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 75 to 207, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
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consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

RRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANFNMEEFARETSR

Revenue recognition

Yok TERE

The Group’s revenue of approximately HK$149.1 million
for the year was derived from the sales of properties.
The revenue was recognised when the properties were
completed and the relevant risks and rewards were
transferred. There is a risk of improper revenue recognition,
particularly with regard to cut-off at the period end dates.

The Company’s disclosures about revenue recognition are
included in notes 2 and 5 to the financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included, amongst others, assessing
the design and operating effectiveness of the controls
over revenue recognition, especially the timing of revenue
recognition. We also performed substantive testing on a
sample basis, including checking to completion reports,
sales contracts and buyers’ acceptances. We also
assessed the sales of properties taking place before and
after the year-end to determine whether the revenue was
recognised in the proper period.
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Key audit matter

RREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN FNAEEFARETSER

Fair value of investment properties

REYRZ A 1BE

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
investment properties, which are stated at fair value, was
approximately HK$3,795.7 million. Management uses
external valuers to support its determination of the fair
value of the investment properties. The valuation of the
investment properties is highly dependent on estimates
and assumptions, such as prevailing monthly market rents,
prevailing market prices, reversionary yield, capitalisation
rates, occupancy rates and market knowledge. The use
of different estimates and assumptions could result in
significantly different fair values.

The Company’s disclosures about investment properties
are included in notes 2, 3 and 16 to the financial
statements.
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Amongst our audit procedures, we have considered the
objectivity, independence and expertise of the external
appraisers. We involved EY real estate valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the valuation techniques and
challenging the underlying assumptions, which included
reference to the lease contracts, external market rents,
historical information of occupancy rates, and in respect of
the capitalisation rates. EY real estate valuation specialists
assisted us in checking to market data applied by other
listed real estate companies, real estate industry analysis,
etc.
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Key audit matter

RREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Net realisable value of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
were stated at HK$4,357.7 million and HK$250.2 million
respectively, and they were carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The determination of net realisable
value is highly dependent on management’s judgement
and estimates, such as assumptions of the expected sales
price and costs to be incurred until completion and sale.
The assumptions adopted in the valuation are affected
by expectations of future market or economic conditions.
To assist management with the assessment of the net
realisable value, the Group engaged external valuers to
perform valuation of some selected properties.

The Company’s disclosures about the net realisable
values for properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are included in notes 2, 3, 21 and
22 to the financial statements.
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Amongst our audit procedures, we have checked the
consistency of management’s calculations against the
methodology used in the prior year. We evaluated the
unsold property areas by comparing them with the
areas which were verified and confirmed by the relevant
institution. We examined the estimated sales price by
comparing it with the recent sales price and recently
available public sales information of neighbouring
properties. We also evaluated the construction costs to be
incurred and selling expenses by reference to information
such as sales contracts, historical sales information and
project budgets. Additionally, we assessed the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the external valuers, and
compared our test results with the valuations made by the
external valuers.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

72

RE BB R R S B R Rk
RIENEE

BN ER  RHERGAVBRRESTE
£l R ERRF SR AR T B B (R ] B A8 SRR
MGAERE - L ABRBREMEROZEED
HE - RAIEREBEERE-NN-FRRES
QOIRMRIE » RIS  FRULAIN -
BPIERE NI BEREAM AR - AR
BENAR - HHEMEMA TR RSB LR
BfE-

ERARBFRDRFHRE - B TEREIZER
FATEAETR R AR R REAERRML -
B8 SRR AL AT A R BRRF Sk AR 51 R - AnRIZ AR
TEHAT SR AR BROM (B B K B AR AL IR AT e B A
R HREREMELREEARE - RIBREH
B ARPRII AT AR FE X ©

EREERETERBETR BT - iF
B TRERAE - R TRREEREE - B
Jh e

. #pl Kl R AR RF Sl BR BR T B R B
BRI EEASE R AR
S RBITEIR P AR RZERER
EBEFRREENETRE  FRR
PIERAERE - R RFFAIRE S M &R
W RE BRER - BRI - 30
BRAEBESZ £ - Eith REEHIRE R
FEMEHMEAFHRER A AR RERR
MRMEHHBBRBRRANAR S

< & o

. W AR BB ST AR B R EBAE S - DARRGHIE

EHEEF  BEMNYLFYE SKHE
NEBEGIN BRI ERER
. AHEEEMRA S BERN S BT M IE

SR R REERNAEE -

BEBERRERQE » —B-AFFH



Independent Auditors’ Report

BB E

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
AR RS TES S

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheong Ming Yik.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

8 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

VYear ended 31 December 2016 HEZE =T —NF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B& 28 5E8H4h - HHLABTIIR)

2016 2015
AL —E-AF
Notes $°000 $°000
BisE T Tt
Revenue Wz 5 374,166 2,176,737
Cost of sales SHERA (184,185) (915,078)
Gross profit EF 189,981 1,261,659
Other revenue H b as 6 13,713 19,789
Other net gain/(loss) Hivz (E18) 558 6 203,133 (269,990)
Net valuation gain on investment BEMEABEWEFEE
properties 16 225,959 15,433
Selling expenses HERX (77,831) (107,098)
Administrative expenses TR (149,746) (155,399)
Profit from operations R 405,209 764,394
Finance costs BhE KA 8 (203,789) (236,361)
Share of loss of a joint venture DME—HEEEE L BE - (26,6606)
Profit before tax RRBE AR A 7 201,420 501,367
Income tax expense FriS i 11 (125,351) (522,199)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERA, (FHER) 76,069 (20,832)
Attributable to: AT S IBFELS -
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZZ PN 13 (60,663) (262,693)
Non-controlling interests FERE A 136,732 241,861
76,069 (20,832)
Loss per share attributable to BAREBEREEA
ordinary equity holders of EhEREE
the parent (HK cents) (784) 13
Basic and diluted EXRREE (1.3) (5.6)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

N *

raZmEIWA

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE=Z—"F+=A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B& & :EBA4N » HHLABITIIR)

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET-RHF
$°000 $'000
T T
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF,(HE) 76,069 (20,832)
Other comprehensive loss Hitt2EER
Other comprehensive loss to be HizBRsEHHE
reclassified to profit or loss FFABRR
in subsequent periods: HEmEmEEE :
Exchange differences on translation BMEIEINETS
of foreign operations 2N AR (280,331) (564,590)
Other comprehensive loss AEEHAMEHEER
for the year, net of tax (3BRFIE) (280,331) (564,590)
Total comprehensive loss for the year & E 2 HE B4 (204,262) (585,422)
Attributable to: DT EEE
Owners of the parent ISYNEILT PN (205,922) (580,216)
Non-controlling interests RS 1,660 (5,206)
(204,262) (585,422)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

At 31 December 2016 R = ZE—RF+-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :E8H4h » HHABTIIR)

2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—hF
Notes $°000 $'000
B T Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e =N 14 985,638 3,469,052
Freehold land KA ZEREL M 15 1,310,682 1,029,952
Investment properties "B 16 3,795,711 3,847,765
Prepaid land lease payments TEf T EE A 17 17,313 18,976
Goodwill EES 18 15,654 16,714
Investment in a joint venture R—EEEEZIRE 19 506,752 509,988
Deferred tax assets FREFIBEE 20 139,665 156,798
_Totalnon-currentassets HABEESE 6,771,415 9,049,245
Current assets REEE
Properties under development EEmE 21 4,357,658 2,501,950
Completed properties held for sale FECRIWE 22 250,227 312,128
Trade and other receivables 5 K HAb W EIE 23 43,976 575,603
Prepaid tax T,EH%RIE 30 752 87
Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIIRITIFK 24 502,856 10,737
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEED 24 2,680,562 2,958,264
7,836,031 6,358,769
Assets classified as held for sale DERFEHECEE 25 2,032,755 —
_Totalcurrentassets h@RERE 9,868,786 6,358,769
Current liabilities uu.ibﬁii
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAFERFIA 26 4,138,078 1,860,468
Bills payable J@éﬁﬂﬁ - 2,148
Receipts in advance TEW IR 27 78,003 568,861
Loans from financial institutions AEM&%E* 28 1,627,784 1,539,783
Loans from an intermediate —REER AR E R
holding company 29 684,380 —
Loans from related parties BiEALTER 29 231,964 141,553
Current taxation BIEARH 18 30 208,014 486,272
6,968,223 4,599,085
Liabilities directly associated with HOBEARELE 2
the assets classified as held for sale EEEZEBEZEE 25 2,043 —
_Total current liabilities n@afmRE 6,970,266 4,599,085
_Netcurrentassets RBAEFE 2898520 1,759,684
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 9,669,935 10,808,929
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

r e AR R TR
ek L
At 31 December 2016 R=ZE—~F+-A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B& & :EBA4N » HHLABITIIR)

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Notes $°000 $°000
B 5T SFoE T
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Loans from financial institutions TEEIEE R 28 1,743,994 1,350,612
Loans from an intermediate —fEF TR AR ER
holding company 29 4,109,095 5,629,832
Loans from related parties A LTER 29 34,332 189,194
Interest payable to an intermediate JE S — A R PR AR A B A2
holding company 26 344,712 220,298
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 20 520,982 519,866
Total non-current liabilities EREBEELE 6,753,115 7,909,802
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,916,820 2,899,127
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of AR E AEGER
the parent
Share capital %N 31 469,735 469,735
Accumulated losses RiTEsiE (267,965) (205,246)
Other reserves HAb 32 1,781,239 1,024,442
1,983,009 2,188,931
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R 933,811 710,196
TOTAL EQUITY R 2,916,820 2,899,127
Ding Benxi Liu Chaohui
TR 2| zhnE
Chairman Executive Director
*E HITESE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREBHE

VYear ended 31 December 2016 HE - T —NF+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B& 28 5E8H4h - HHLABTIIR)
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAREARE
Non-
Share Share Special Exchange Statutory ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
iz BRDEE HEIRE B EERE By @t FERER g
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i Fr i r Fr i i Fr i
(note 31) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32)
(Bizk3t) (i 32) (B 32) (M32) (i 32)
As at 1 January 2015 R-Z-1E-F-H 469,735 1,935,266 53,544 164,017 63972 2,613 2,769,147 709,202 3,478,349
(Loss)/profi for the year RER (BB) /85 - - - - - (262,693) (262,693) 241,861 (20,832)
Other comprehensive loss ~ AFEEMZE
for the year: BE:
Exchange differences on REENER
translation of foreign JERER
operations - - - (317,523) - - (317,523) 247,067) (564,500)
Total comprehensive loss ~ AFE2AFEEE
for the year - - - (317,523) - (262,693) (580216) (5,206) (585,422)
Capital injection from FinfER A
non-controling interests - - - - - - - 6,200 6,200
Appropriation tostatutory  BREZAERES
reserve fund - - - - 35,166 (35,166) - - -
Asat31 December 2015 R-ZF-1%
+=R=t-H 469,735 1,985,266 53,544 (168,506)" 99,138* (205,246) 2,188,931 710,196 2,899,127
As at 1 January 2016 R=E-x¥-F-H 469,735 1,935,266 53,544 (163,506) 99,138 (205,246) 2,188,931 710,196 2,899,127
(Loss)/profit for the year RERE (58) /75 - - - - - (60,663) (60,663) 136,732 76,069
Other comprehensive loss ~ AFEEM2EEE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEER
translation of foreign ZEREE
operations - - - (145,259) - - (145,259) (135,072) (280,331)
Total comprehensive loss ~ AEE2AFEAE
for the year - - - (145,259) - (60,663) (205,922) 1,660 (204,262)
Capital injection from FERESTE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - 221,955 221,955
Appropriation to statutory ~ BEZETHES
reserve fund - - - - 2,056 (2,056) - - -
Asat31 December 2016  R=F-1%
+ZA=1-H 469,735 1,935,266* 53,544* (308,765)* 101,194* (267,965) 1,983,009 933,811 2,916,820
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of * ZERERP RIEEREMBEARRRKINTE

$1,781,239,000 (2015: $1,924,442,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ/\iﬁzﬁlﬂb%%

Year ended 31 December 2016 HE —Z—/NF+ =

A=t—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B& & :EBA4N » HHLABITIIR)

2016 2015
AL —E-AF
Notes $°000 $°000
Bi5E Frx Fr
Cash flows from operating activities K& FBELCZHERE
Profit before tax BRI A& A 201,420 501,367
Adjustments for: BT EIEFE
Finance costs RhE R AR 8 203,789 236,361
Share of loss of a joint venture Dh—REECEZEER - 26,666
Interest income FE A (13,713) (19,789)
Depreciation e 7 47,855 6,915
Amortisation of land T FE & FRIE B
lease payments 7 475 590
Impairment of construction in progress 7= TI2JE{E 6 - 216,585
(Reversal)/write-down of inventories 78 (#E) MRz
to net realisable value A #3558 6 (160,855) 216,585
Net valuation gain on TEMEBERE
investment properties et (225,959) (15,433)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items HEWE - BEREKBIER
of property, plant and equipment 2 (Wzk) Bs1E 7 (145) 12
52,867 1,169,859
(Increase)/decrease in properties e (380) R
under development (583,561) 291,288
Decrease/(increase) in completed BERE 2R TYE
properties held for sale A, (45hn) 70,362 (154,610)
Decrease in trade receivables H 5 EWGRIA K
and other receivables E b e W sk IE R 76,263 482,363
Decrease in receipts in advance TEW R IER A (39,953) (860,675)
Increase in trade payables B 5 ENFEIA R
and other payables H b A< FRIEHE hD 1,369,770 848,874
(Decrease)/increase in bills payable FET AR ORlA) /3800 (2,148) 2,240
Cash generated from operations RETHEEZES 943,600 1,779,339
Taxes paid BERHIE (329,817) (373,064)
Net cash flows from RETEBZ
operating activities RERETFHE 613,783 1,406,275
80 BEERERRERAGT o —F—XREFR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ/\Iﬁlﬁl)le%

Year ended 31 December 2016 B Z —Z—"NF+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B& 28 5E8H4h - HHLABTIIR)
2016 2015
—E—RE —hF
Note $’000 $°000
B 5T T Tt
Net cash flows from RETEMB2ESTH
operating activities 613,783 1,406,275
Cash flows from investing activities BREZTEBELZEESHRE
Purchase of items of property, HBEYE  BEX
plant and equipment HfEIEE (631,697) (260,402)
Purchase of freehold land BEKAEELH (157,538) —
Purchase of investment properties s t7ES - (3,364,805)
Expenditure on investment properties REME T - (519,593)
Interest received BFE 13,713 19,789
Proceeds from disposal ng*«%% M E & EEE
of items of property, Z 18508
plant and equipment 502 —
(Incease)/decrease in restricted ZIR B RITIFR
bank deposits (&) R (492,119) 68,875
Net cash flows used in RETEFAZ
investing activities RERETFHE (1,267,139) (4,056,136)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEFBELZELSRE
Proceeds from new loans from RIS B B RFTS5RIE
financial institutions 2,194,550 1,437,296
Proceeds from loans from —F'EJ R A R E RS
an intermediate holding company A — 2,242,024
Proceeds from new loans from E@@/\i%ﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’a FIE
related parties 52,720 282,547
Repayment of loans from financial EESRBBER
institutions (1,439,110) (119,916)
Repayment of loans from related EEBAEATER
parties (114,113) (174,650)
Interest paid ERFLE (243,026) (141,111)
Capital injection from non-controlling eIy Hxﬁx?&é
shareholders 221,955 6,200
Net cash flows from financing RIEEEEEZ
activities REeRE8RHE 672,976 3,532,390
Net increase in cash RERESEEY
and cash equivalents EANFRE 19,620 882,529
Cash and cash equivalents FYzRE MRESEFEY
at beginning of year 2,958,264 2,103,615
Cash and cash equivalents EAREREEE
included in assets held for sale ZHRERACEED 25 (14,867) —
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [E R & &) 2 222 (282,455) (27,880)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—Hz
31 December ReRRLEEY 24 2,680,562 2,958,264
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

1.

82

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at The Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) is principally engaged in property development,
property investment and property management in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and overseas during the year.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”),
the immediate holding company of the Company is Wanda
Commercial Properties Overseas Limited (“Wanda Overseas”), a
company established in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Dalian Wanda Group Co.,
Ltd., a company established in the PRC.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

1.

Issued

ordinary/
registered

Name of the company
NGRS

3TV
BRREEBE

share capital
BRTZER
B EN

NAREEER

BEASERERAT(ARRD AR
BREEAMKIZBRAR - AREZ
=T ffft 3% == B 2 7 The Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street Hamilton HM12, Bermuda °

FR-ARAREMBAR (A THE
[AEE D FERPEAREFME(H
B ) RBIMEEMERR MERER
MEEIE -

ARRER(EFDRR ARBZH
BERARABEREMESIERA
A &E85))  —AREBRELES
I 2 AR)  RRBZ BEER DR
REBZEBRMHARATF - —HRH
BRI 2 AR °

MEARIER
AAREEHBARZEENT :

Percentage

of equity
attributable

to the Company
AT ENG
EEEIH
Indirect

L3

Principal
activities

TEEK

Direct

HE

Amazing Wise Limited

Dalong Industrial Group
Limited
AEBXEEFRAT

British Virgin
Islands

RBREZES

Hong Kong

0

1,000 ordinary
shares of

United States Dollar

(“US$") 1 each
1,000 &A%
FE1ETY

=gl

$10,000,000

10,000,000 7T

53% — Investment

holding

— 53% Investment
holding

REZEK
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

NAREBER @)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows KAREBWBAR ZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered RN T EAE
and business share capital EZEI Principal

Name of the company AL DRTZER Direct Indirect activities

NEERB B REEME R 1L g HiE B FEEWR

Fujian Zhonglu Real Hong Kong $1,000 — 53% Inactive
Estate Development
(HK) Limited

R IR AR B BB 1,000 7T UmeE
(FE)ARAT

Fujian Henglicheng PRC Renminbi (‘RMB”) — 50.35% Property
Real Estate Development 129,820,000 development
Co., Limited
(previously known as
Fujian Zhouglu Real
Estate Development
Co., Limited)

(notes i, iii)

BREBNHEERRE a2 AR MEER
BRAT] 129,820,000 7T
(RITBfB R IRE
MERZEBR A
(B5E i)

Fujian Hengli & Savills PRC RMB500,000 — 27.69% Property
Property Management management
Co., Limited (note i)

BMmENE—KF H AR 500,000 7T MEER
BEHTEEIE
BR AT (FEED

Fujian Hengli Assets PRC RMB50,000,000 — 53% Property
Management Co., management
Limited (note i)

BRENEEERE H ABH 50,000,000 7T MEEIR
BRAE (MH5Ei)
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

1.

84

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows

ERRER

B

)

hir

NAREBER @)

AXEMBRARZHBIT (&)

(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AN B EML
and business share capital ERES Principal
Name of the company MR ERTZER Direct Indirect activities
AT BRREELE EESHTES HiE ik FTEXEK
Wanda International Hong Kong $200,000,000 60% — Investment
Real Estate holding
Investment Co. Limited
BERRMERE e 200,000,000 7T REER
BRAA]
Wanda One (UK) Limited United 10,000 ordinary - 60% Property
(“Wanda One”) Kingdom shares of development
Great Britain Pound
(“GBP”) 1 each
=" 10,000 B AR EE MEER
13852 ERR
Wanda One Nine Elms United 10,000 ordinary — 60% Property
(UK) Limited (“Wanda Kingdom shares of development
One Nine EIms”) GBP1 each
= 10,000 fx FAREE MR
18187 ERk
Wanda Europe Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Limited
SERUMME BB 17T REER
KEBR A
Wanda Madrid Spain Euro (“EUR”) 3,000 — 60% Property
Development S.L.U. development
PRI 3,000 7T MEER
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

NAREBER @)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) B ARIER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows NEEEMBREZFIBWOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered NS
and business share capital ERES Principal
Name of the company S DRTLER Direct  Indirect activities
NCIEZY ] BRREEM ERHEEN HiE S FEEWR
Wanda Properties British Virgin 100 ordinary shares 51% — Investment
Investment Limited Islands of US$0.01 each holding
BEEERAFRLA REELHS 100 iR G AXTEE REFER
0.01 ETZ EiBR
Wanda Commercial Hong Kong $1 — 51% Investment
Properties Investment holding
Limited
BEBRME BB 17T REPE
KEBRRA
Guilin Gaoxin Wanda PRC RMB1,108,484,000 - 51% Property
Plaza Co., Ltd. (note ii) development
EMEIEERS aa AR MEER
BRAE (KL 1,108,484,000 7T
Wanda Americas Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Limited
BEEMbE B 17T KEER
WEBR AR
Wanda Americas The United States 1,000 ordinary — 60% Investment
Commercial Properties of America shares of holding
Co., Ltd. (“USA”) US$0.1 each
EFEREFE 1,000 X AR EE REER
(F%&E 1) 0.1 ETTZ B
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

1.

86

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows

ERRER

B

)

hir

NAREBER @)

AXEMBRARZHBIT (&)

(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AN B EML
and business share capital ERES Principal
Name of the company MR ERTZER Direct Indirect activities
AT BREREXEBE EESHTES HiE i FTEXEK
Wanda Chicago Real USA US$10 — 60% Investment
Estate LLC holding
ES 10%E7T REFEL
Parcel C LLC USA US$13,385,707 — 54% Property
development
X 13,385,707 & 7T MEER
Wanda Australia Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Limited
SR E BB 17T REFER
HEBR AR
Wanda Australia Australia 1,000 ordinary shares — 60% Investment
Commercial Properties of Australian Dollar holding
Pty. Ltd. (“AUD”) 0.001 each
RN g8 1,000 AR EE REER
0.001 87T 2 E5BAX
Wanda One Sydney Australia 1,000 ordinary shares — 60% Property
Pty. Ltd. of AUDO0.001 each development
) Y NCE] 1,000 REAREE MEER

0.001 BT 2 EdM
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Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 58 RN -

B ISR AR AL

BB TTHIR)

— > MY
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RRIREEER @

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBARER (&)

Notes: BfE -
These entities are equity joint ventures established in the PRC. ZETRANTEKY 2 REXNEGED

o

i These entities are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in i ZEEEARPEKIIZINEBED
the PRC. E

i Pursuant to a share transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) dated i BEAEENBARAREEEEER
22 May 2005 between Dalong Industrial Group Limited (“Dalong”), ARI(TKRRE]) BEEh ikEE Q8 ([F
a subsidiary of the Group, and Fujian Zhonglu Group Co., Limited REBE]DBBHAZSTEERAFAATZ
(“Zhonglu Group”), Zhonglu Group agreed to transfer 95% of the Az imheEREpE ([ HRl) - PIRER
equity of Fujian Henglicheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd AEEREREENIREELZREBRAA
(“Fujian Henglicheng”) to Dalong, after which Fujian Henglicheng (TERIENW]) 2 95% s T RE -
became a subsidiary of Dalong. Zhonglu Group has since then been ItEEEENHKAKRE 2B AR
the non-controlling equity holder of Fujian Henglicheng. According B B IRE B AR B 2 AR
to the Agreement, certain assets and liabilities related to an old ERFAA - BREHGE - EEEAFG
project commenced before the transfer were retained by Zhonglu 2—HERBEEBHBAzETEEREBE
Group, the relevant risks and benefits of the aforesaid projects HPREBRE - LiiIEE 2 HBERER
were also retained by Zhonglu Group. Fujian Henglicheng maintains K F s TN A iR ER B A o AR ER1E 1k
separate books and records for this old project. As at 31 December AZREEEREERRA R - X
2016, the relevant assets and liabilities amounting to $49,945,000 ZE-RETZA=+—H8 95k
and $10,551,000 respectively have not been legally transferred. 49,945,000 7T K2 10,651,000 7T Z #H
However, as the risk and benefits of these assets and liabilities BEREBIDROEEE - Al - AR
were retained by Zhonglu Group, these assets and liabilities were ZEEERBEZRBREAZHPRE
excluded from the consolidated financial statements. B 2EEERARNEIIAGS

BIERET -
iV Except for Wanda One and Wanda One Nine Elms, the statutory (Y% ¥ Wanda One } Wanda One Nine

financial statements of the other subsidiaries of the Group for each
of the two years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, or since their
respective dates of establishment or acquisitions by the Group, were
not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

Elms4h - A5 B E Al i B A B 2 0&E
IBBRNBE-_Z-—AFR-ZT—K
FHZA=+—RUIMEFESSF =&
B BRI S h AR E Y A B HIA
o WREEBLOKGRTANEBMRL
KEBRAEREAK B AR -

BEERA - LAARRRIMBARZSIER
BAEERNFEREEEATENAERN
SEEEFEZEAMD °

The above table lists of the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
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BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2.1

88

Basis Of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties which have
been measured at fair value. Disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“$”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand (“$’000") except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

2.
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2.1

mREE
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g((BEGMAE ) BEHZE
BUMBREEN(TEEVHRSE
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iE °

BRIz AR BEAEZREDEIN
MEBRERBELRAOLRE -
FERE 2 SRR IR ERE
BERAAEBERLEXNAME Z
BEE R - ZEVHREIABTT
(ITH 2% BRAEEZHN - B
EEOARERR O TTAT

Tl e
mEE%E

BE_T—RET_-_A=t—HIt
FE - REVBRREEANRALR
HIB AR Z M EHE - HBAF
AN RBITERSKERENNER
(BRERIEER) - EAKERZ
BRL1% 5% & X A FfTE A5 B (2] R 7
XREBREEEN - HEENEB
HETERED (AEASERRRE
WX IR E N RIEEERNRA
A Me B AL R - RIARSE
B HIRRKRE AT

BEBERRERQE » —B-AFFH
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B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis Of Preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Al
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 7SN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

20

Basis Of Preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods

of Depreciation and Amortisation

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
(2011) Statements

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14,
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, amendments
to HKAS 27 (2011), and certain amendments included in
the Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle, which are
not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the amendments
are described below:

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

that specific line items in the statement of profit
or loss and the statement of financial position
may be disaggregated;

that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

that the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for
using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and the statement of
profit or loss. The amendments have had no significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

92

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the
principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue
reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the
asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are
consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate
property, plant and equipment and may only be used
in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible
assets. The amendments are applied prospectively.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group has
not used a revenue-based method for the calculation
of depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
issued in October 2014 sets out amendments to a
number of HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are as
follows:

° HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes
to a plan of sale or a plan of distribution to
owners should not be considered to be a new
plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the
original plan. Accordingly, there is no change in
the application of the requirements in HKFRS
5. The amendments also clarify that changing
the disposal method does not change the date
of classification of the non-current assets or
disposal group held for sale. The amendments
are applied prospectively. The amendments
have had no impact on the Group as the Group
did not have any change in the plan of sale or
disposal method in respect of the disposal group
held for sale during the year.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts®

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August
2016 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes
its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The
amendments clarify that the approach used to account for
vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-settled share-based
payments. The amendments introduce an exception so
that a share-based payment transaction with net share
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in
order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified
in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction when certain conditions are met. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction are modified,
with the result that it becomes an equity-settled share-
based payment transaction, the transaction is accounted
for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements. The Company did not have any effective
share option scheme during the year ended and as at
31 December 2016.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. During 2016, the Group performed
a high-level assessment of the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on currently
available information and may be subject to changes arising
from further detailed analyses or additional reasonable and
supportable information being made available to the Group
in the future. The expected impacts arising from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are summarised as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets.
It expects to continue measuring at fair value all
financial assets currently held at fair value. Equity
investments currently held as available for sale will be
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the investments are intended to be held
for the foreseeable future and the Group expects
to apply the option to present fair value changes
in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses
recorded in other comprehensive income for the equity
investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when
the investments are derecognised.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

96

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

(b)

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group expects to apply
the simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present value
of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its
trade and other receivables. The Group will perform a
more detailed analysis which considers all reasonable
and supportable information, including forward-looking
elements, for estimation of expected credit losses on
its trade and other receivables upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EEMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for application now.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
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Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes
in contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on
1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 EREMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing
the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e.,
the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The lease
liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees
will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the
right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events,
such as change in the lease term and change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as
an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS
17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019 and is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16
upon adoption.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

100

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. The amendments will result in additional
disclosure to be provided in the financial statements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2017.

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at
fair value, although they also have a broader application
for other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity,
when assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference,
needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions
on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain
the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2017.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 FESHERHE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Investment in a joint venture

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the joint
venture, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of the joint venture is included as part of
the Group’s investment in the joint venture.
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BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 7SN + HLAETIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Investment in a joint venture (Continued)

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment
in an associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in a joint venture is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
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B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

104

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly

or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

106

2.

REEERSTTBER @)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

b= 1113

fBin

DRAEEE#E)

AR A BERAMBRERENL
BRENEERABNERHAAE
EFfEBEMEBEANKEES
AU TAABESHENE

F—H— ENHEREEXRER
R R T5 B RE CRE

HE)

F_H— ERNBRAAREEFEM
EEBEANABERE(E
B EEZ) REEHA
SEHBETA

F=H— ENBRAREEFEM
EEERNTIBRE
KE®ASENAEET
Pz

FUIRAE F I BN AN 15 R Wl
MEEMABEMS @ AKEBEER
BEHmEMREFT G B (ERY
AABEFEEEMSBEANR
EEBAZB) EEERHLETR
FHERE -

BEBERRERQE » —B-AFFH



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, completed
properties held for sale, properties under development,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal
group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

108

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises,
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(

) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

110

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as
follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 24 FESTHTBERME®)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation M - MERRBURTE
(Continued) (#&)

Useful lives Residual values

A {55 A S 5 BE
Freehold land KA FERE LM Not depreciated Not depreciated
Wi E WS E
Buildings BF 30 years 5%
304
Leasehold improvements HEMERE Over the shorter of Nil
the lease term or 5 years piis
HEA 5 F o BEE
Furniture, fixtures and equipment BRAfL - RE R 3-5 years 0-10%
3-5%F
Motor vehicles E 5 years 0-10%
5%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment W% - BE REBEE S50
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated E] $H—H§E% Hy - BIBRAIER 2
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is }ﬂZZlXHﬂ;z oz E6BERSE -
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and Y BIEM@BITE - BE -
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if Tﬁﬁﬁi%ﬂ&?ﬁ%xﬁi?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
appropriate, at least at each financial year end. EEFLER TR - WIEFE
(aniEF) -
An item of property, plant and equipment including any W WERZEER (BEVS
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon BRIEMEKRIT D) R EHTE
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected HA g B A sl S JEEUR 2R A
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or BRI AL ERERR o NIRIEFERE
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the EzFETERRERZEMDE
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the SR - AEHEELEME
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant SRIBFREHRA R A8 ©

asset.
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BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents renovation works in
progress and is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost mainly comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Properties under construction or development for future
use as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. Such properties under
construction are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs, and stated at fair value, subsequent to
initial recognition, at each reporting date when fair value can
be determined reliably. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under construction
will be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
reliably determined or construction is completed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary

for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its
sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified as
held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than

investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale
are not depreciated or amortised.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Operating leases (Continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings
as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributed to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

116

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assets.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period

whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in
the statement of profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 38 #£RE -
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

120

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus,
in the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group'’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

122

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period. The net realisable value of
properties under development is determined by establishing
the market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed
basis with appropriate deduction on construction costs,
professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable profit
margin.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total land and building costs
attributable to unsold properties. The net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sales proceeds of properties
sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management’s estimates
based on the prevailing market conditions, on an individual
property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

124

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination
is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with the general guidance for
provisions above; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
pension schemes operated by the respective governments.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the pension
schemes is to pay the required ongoing contributions.
Contributions under the schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the pension schemes.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

128

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

2. REHERSTTHER @

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all the following criteria are met:

(@ the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties have been transferred to the buyers;

(b)  neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the properties is retained;

(c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

(e) the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The above criteria are met when construction of the
relevant properties has been completed and the Group has
obtained the project completion report issued by the relevant
government authorities, the properties have been delivered
to the purchasers, and the collectability of related receivables
is reasonably assured. Payments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Rental income derived from the lease of the Group’s
properties is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Property management fee income derived from the provision
of property maintenance and management services is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 2. REHERSTTHER @
POLICIES (Continued)

24 FEESFTHERBE#)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and a joint venture are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

132

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas companies which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

134

Judgements (Continued)

(if)

Classification between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

(iii) Classification between investment properties and

properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by management on determining
whether a property is designated as an investment property
or a property held for sale. The Group considers its intention
for holding the properties at the early development stage of
the related properties. During the course of construction,
the related properties under construction are accounted for
as properties under development included in current assets
if the properties are intended for sale after completion,
whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current
assets if the properties are intended to be held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of
the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred
to completed properties held for sale and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value, while the properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to completed investment properties and are
subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
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Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources

of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are described below:

0]

Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are measured at
fair value, which were revalued based on the appraised
market value by an independent professional valuer. The
fair value for completed investment properties was arrived
at by considering the capitalised income to be derived from
the existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the
properties or, where appropriate, by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the
surrounding areas. The fair values of investment properties
under development are determined by establishing the
market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed
basis with appropriate deduction on construction costs,
professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable margin.
The determination of the fair value for completed investment
properties requires the Group to estimate reversionary
potential of the properties while for investment properties
under development, estimates on costs to be incurred and
future margin are required in the valuation.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 December 2016 was $3,795,711,000 (2015: $3,847,765,000).
Further detalils, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are stated in note 16 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2016 was $15,654,000 (2015: $16,714,000). Further details
are given in note 18.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to CIT in Mainland China. As a result
of the fact that certain matters relating to CIT have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the CIT
provision to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will have an impact on the CIT expense and CIT
provisions in the period in which the differences are realised.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

LAT in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
property development expenditures.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BEREFTHERMATT @)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued) et THEEM (8)

(iv) PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT") (Continued) (iv) FELIBER( LHhIEE

EANE-))

When calculating the LAT, the Group needs to estimate RETE T IR ERR - NEBFMH
the deductible expenditures and makes judgement on the AR ST - WARIR AR R E R
relevant tax rate on an individual property basis under the R RERBERE R EREER
relevant applicable tax laws and regulations. Given the FERATE AL HE - ERE I
uncertainties of the calculative basis of LAT to be interpreted FREN T HIEERAEREEAT
by the local tax bureau, the actual outcomes may be higher WEMW  REEER  BERERT
or lower than that estimated at the end of the reporting RN SERN AT ER o MEEE
period. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is TR G AR AR RRERN S
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such BAR EBEE8er 28R
differences will impact the LAT expense and LAT provision in Z= R AN T IS ERH AT R i
the period in which the differences are realised. AT -

(v) Deferred tax assets (v) EEBIEEE
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible ERA Be B2 B R AR E MRS
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent BRLERATENEREEE R
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available TEEEHREA - BT AT
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax R\t 2 R K ) AR R PR A T s HE
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement RELHIEEE - enEsBEE
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets AR E K HER PR A 5T R 2RERAS FE AR
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and BATSENREMEEE - AW
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning BEIBE - DURTIEERAELER
strategies. HEENSTE -

(vi) Impairment of trade and other receivables (vi) BEZREMERFUERE
Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based B 5 REMEYRIBREIIZE S
on assessment of the recoverability of trade and other Ko E b & W FR IR /Y B Y =1 A2 Z AT
receivables. The identification of impairment of trade and HIED - BEEAEBREHESRHE
other receivables requires management’s judgement and At JRE LA R TR R B = 1 T Ay
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in the i o BEEBRIERIE KRR 2 BB
future is different from the original estimates, such differences RIRRBEE - BIEEEEGE
will have an impact on the carrying value of the receivables ROk B HAR 2 YRR R R (B S
and the impairment loss/reversal of impairment of the B/ EREFURERER L Z R
receivables in the period in which such estimate is changed. BRENTE -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vii) Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its items of
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of items
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitors’ actions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying value of an item of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy as disclosed in note 2.4. The recoverable amount of
an item of property, plant and equipment is calculated as the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use, the
calculation of which involves the use of estimates.

(viii) Net realisable value for properties under development and

completed properties held for sale

The net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sales proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management’s estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions, on an individual property basis. The net realisable
value of properties under development is determined by
establishing the market values of the properties on an “as-if”
completed basis with appropriate deduction on construction
costs, professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable profit
margin.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

140

The Group manages its businesses by projects in different

geographical locations. In a manner consistent with the way in

which information is reported internally to the Group’s senior

executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment, the Group has presented the following

two reportable segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

The PRC: this segment engages in the development of
commercial and residential properties for sales and leasing in
the PRC.

Overseas: this segment engages in the development of
overseas property projects.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment assets exclude the head office’s assets and
goodwill and segment liabilities exclude the head office’s
liabilities as these assets and liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., KEDEER @
(Continued)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) () OHEE BEREB#E)
The measure used for reporting segment profit/(loss) is “profit/ RERE D& 2= F/ (E18) 25t
(loss) before tax”. EFEAIRBANETR, (EEB)] -
The PRC Overseas Total
HE 28 &t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-xE  ZT-nf ZE-XF T ZEB-xE C-Z-1f
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

fr T r T Fr i

For the years ended HEZZE-~ER
31 December 2016 and 2015 ZE-1f
TZAZ+-HLEE
Revenue from external RENDEP 2 Y
customers 250,129 2,078,406 124,037 98,331 374,166 2,176,737
Reportable segment profit/{loss) EAP IR/ (BB) 300,549 1,432,728 (85,477)  (1,077,267) 265,072 355,461

At 31 December 2016 and 2015 RZE-7ER

“E-1f
+=B=1-A
Reportable segment assets BENHEE 5,140,655 5815932 11,443,760 9,501,661 16,584,415 15,317,593
Reportable segment GEHHEE
liabilties 2,534,782 3,191,858 6,895,952 5,186,583 9,430,734 8,378,441
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
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(Continued)

4., BESEER @)

(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, (i) |ED B2z B &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ERBEZHIR
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—RF
$’000 $'000
Ft Tt
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment and mEDHMEFE K
consolidated revenue 374,166 2,176,737
Profit before tax BRE TS F
Reportable segment profit WE DI & F 265,072 355,461
Unallocated head office and b AN b VNI
corporate results (63,652) 145,906
Consolidated profit before tax FRERBIAE T 201,420 501,367
2016 2015
—E—-RF —E—RF
$’000 $'000
Ft Tt
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets mEDHEE 16,584,415 15,317,593
Unallocated head office and ROBBH R AREE
corporate assets 55,786 90,421
Consolidated total assets MEREE 16,640,201 15,408,014
Liabilities b=§§
Reportable segment liabilities REDEAE 9,430,734 8,378,441
Unallocated head office and AOBBH R ATEE
corporate liabilities 4,292,647 4,130,446
Consolidated total liabilities NN Y =N 13,723,381 12,508,887
EEBEERREREMRAT o —T—XRFEFH
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(iii) Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical locations of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s non-current assets
(excluding deferred tax assets) (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical locations of revenue from external
customers are based on the locations at which the services
were provided or the properties were sold or leased. The
geographical locations of the specified non-current assets
are based on the physical locations of the assets, in the case
of fixed assets, and the locations of the operations to which
they are allocated, in the case of goodwill.

4, BEFIER @)

(iii) HwEEX

TRESIER () A EEREINBE
FzBakilNEEERSDEE
(TEEBREEREEE) ([HEEFFR
BEE ) BN EEFR - KA
Rz W 2 IR B TR R AT
RERBHAHEXRENE 2T
HEHTIE ° FEFRBEE 2 IE
NEDREE ERVE (SLEE
BEMS ) RESR 2 ZEE (3
BEME) ME °

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMEREF 2z BEFRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—XE —T—HE Z—ZB-XE —T—FHF
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Tt T Tt T
The PRC H
(including Hong Kong) (BEEE) 250,129 2,078,406 3,843,375 3,899,461
Overseas LN 124,037 98,331 2,788,375 4,992,986

374,166 2,176,737 6,631,750 8,892,447

(iv) Information about major customers

The Group had no customer with whom the Group had
transactions generating revenue exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: Nil).

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

vy EEEEEFZEH

HE-Z—R"F+ZA=1+—HI1
FE-AEEITE(ZZ—RF:
m)RNEBEEAZTFHEA 2 WG
AEBWEBBE10% 2B °

143



Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

5. REVENUE 5. Wz
Revenue represents income from the sale of properties, property Wt R FREEDEZ WA - YR
rental income and property management income during the year, WA RYEEBIA (BENBEERK
net of business tax and other sales related taxes and discounts HAb B HEABRE 2 FRIBRITH) - Wasz
allowed. An analysis of revenue is as follows: DT -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AF
$°000 $000
Frx FIt
Sale of properties HEME 149,055 1,922,762
Rental income HE WA 198,779 229,722
Property management income L EREIGN 26,332 24,253
374,166 2,176,737
6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET GAIN/ 6. HttlamRE M~
(LOSS) (B8) #5
An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and other net gain/(loss) AEFz Emblizs REAUKES(EE)
is as follows: FEEDTT
2016 2015
—B-AF —TRF
$°000 $'000
SPo T
Other revenue Btz
Bank interest income RITFBMA 13,713 19,789
Other net gain/(loss) Hyihzs < (E#8) FHE
Exchange gain, net I 28,557 136,200
Forfeiture of deposits RWERIZ®
from purchasers 794 2,728
Reversal/(write-down) of TFEEB, (MR =
inventories to net realisable value AR EE 160,855 (216,585)
Impairment of construction FEIERE
in progress - (216,585)
Others Hit 12,927 24,252
203,133 (269,990)
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRELRIEA
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REB 7B BEME&HE (5T )
THIIEB BE -
2016 2015
—EB-XEF —E—RF
Notes $°000 $'000
k=3 FTr T
Cost of properties sold EEMEKA 67,459 858,608
Cost of services provided* Fr iR AR 2 PR A * 116,726 56,470
Depreciation* e~ 14 47,855 6,915
Amortisation of land lease T AR & SR IE
payments 17 475 590
Minimum lease payments BB TR
under operating leases EFgLAERe
for land and buildings 11,676 18,826
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE S
— Audit services — ZE RS 1,063 1,021
— Other services — B ARTS 155 587
Employee benefit expenses EEENFX
(excluding directors’ (TBEEEFHM (FIFE))
remuneration (note 9)):
— Salaries, wages and — He  TEREMER
other benefits 65,931 71,683
— Contributions to defined — MEREHFCRIRETE
contribution retirement plans {EH Z 5k 5,157 6,029
71,088 77,712
Direct operating expenses BREHE 2 IREME
(including repairs and EEZEESERY
maintenance) arising on (BREFEERFRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 18,149 15,059
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEWE - WEREE
items of property, plant BE 2z (M) EiE
and equipment (145) 12

*

Cost of services provided includes depreciation of approximately

$32,481,000 (2015: Nil), which amount is also included in the total
amounts of depreciation disclosed above.
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RE KA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERA DT -
2016 2015
—E—REF —ZT—RF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Interest on loans from financial CRIEEERFIR
institutions 131,080 139,376
Interest on loans from an hENEEZ —EPE
intermediate holding company R /NN = BN
repayable within five years 163,103 150,273
Interest on loans from related BB A TERFE
parties 39,183 37,275
333,366 326,924
Less: Interest expenses capitalised B EEYEREETIRZ
into properties under BAR M BRALZ
development and
construction in progress*® (129,577) (90,563)
203,789 236,361
~ The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from 4% . fERRAREREFN T 4% E6% 2
to 6% per annum (2015: 4%-6% per annum). ZHER(ZFT-—RF §F4%E6%)
ERAL -
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 9. EEH M
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the FRRELTRANEEERRENE
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong 383(1)@) ~ (b) * (c) KMk Al (# 5%
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of EEF=ER) APIBE 2 BETR s ESH
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: BN
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
$°000 $'000
F7t T
Fees we 446 463
Other emoluments: HEms -
Salaries, allowances and e E R BYEF
benefits in kind - 1,985
Performance related bonuses FIREMIELL - —
Pension scheme contributions RIKSEH IR - 18
— 2,003
446 2,466
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continved) 9. EEFHM =
Directors’ remuneration is as follows: E=HMT
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
& ERR REHH Bire
ok ENEF A TR ErEf Gt
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr Tr Tr Tr
2016 —E-RE
Chairman and IRFHFNIEE
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TABEE - - - - -
Executive director: HOIES:
Mr. Liu Chaohui G - - - - -

Independent non-executive B IFHITEE :

directors:

Mr. Liu Jipeng E) -y 100 - - - 100

Dr. Xue Yunkui EEEEL 100 - - - 100

Mr. Zhang Huagiao RIBEE 246 - - - 246
446 = = = 446

Non-executive directors: FTES

Mr. Qi Jie BREE - - - - -

Mr. Qu Dejun HiEE S e - - - - -
446 = = = 446
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9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (cContinved) 9. EEFHM =
Directors’ remuneration is as follows (Continued): EEHT (E)
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
He 2R RAE Rike
e BEWEF iz RELGS st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T Fr
2015 —Z-AF
Chairman and IRRFNTES:
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TAHEE - - - - -
Executive director: HITEE:
Mr. Liu Chaohui G - - - - -

Independent non-executive BV IFHITEE -

directors:
Mr. Liu Jipeng ), e 100 - - - 100
Dr. Xue Yunkui ETEEL 100 - - - 100
Mr. Zhang Huaqjao FIBEE 263 - - - 263
463 — — — 463
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Qi Jie BRELE - - - - -
Mr. Qu Dejun HiEELAE - - - - -
Mr. Chen Chang Wei BRRERE
(resigned on (RZF—1F
18 June 2015) NAT\BEHE) - 1,985 - 18 2,003
463 1,985 - 18 2,466
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRN - BEESHEIRBNETNH
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2015: Nil). Mz ZHE(ZE—HF &) -

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016 149



Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

=l = 3F =
10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. A B EEHES
Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments, there hEGEaHREETEEANES(ZE
is no director (2015: one ex-director) whose emoluments are —hF  —RAEER)  EEZHHF
disclosed in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year BER XTI N - ABESHIE
of the five highest paid non-director employees (2015: remaining EEEE(ZT—RF B THERESH
four highest paid non-director employees and one ex-director who IFEEEEN —BRERTESETE
was employed after his resignation as a director) are as follows: ZHMEES) 2HMEFBET -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hEF
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Salaries, allowances and e R LEDRF
benefits in kind 15,045 11,458
Performance related bonuses FIRENETEAD 2,462 1,958
Pension scheme contributions RIRE TSI 36 34
17,543 13,450
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose FEEBESHFEEZHFMN FUTE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: :

Number of employees

EEAH
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 JT £ 2,500,000 7T = 3
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000 2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000 7T D —
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000 3,000,001 7T % 3,500,000 7T 1 1
$3,500,001 to $4,000,000 3,500,001 JTZ 4,000,000 7T 1 1
$4,000,001 to $4,500,000 4,000,001 JT & 4,500,000 7© 1 —
5 5
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11. INCOME TAX

1. Fri5H

2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
Current tax BIEABEIE
Corporate Income Tax (note (iii)) TR ZEPR1SHE (B3 (i)
— Charge for the year — NEFERX 38,010 159,468
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (note (iv)) B I E R (R (v) 41,502 334,069
79,512 493,537
Deferred tax ELERE
Origination and reversal of temporary ERMER 2 EE D
differences:
— Revaluation of properties — MESH 34,986 (23,267)
— Deductibility of PRC Land — BB IRET AT HIRRE
Appreciation Tax 6,350 2,501
— Pre-sale properties in the PRC — B EYE 1,514 47,666
— Tax losses — BIBEEE (15,924) 1,762
— Depreciation — e 22,823 —
— Others — Hftb (3,910) —
45,839 28,662
Total tax charge for the year NEEFIAR S 858 125,351 522,199

Notes:

)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax or overseas corporate tax
has been made in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group did not have assessable profits in Hong Kong or overseas for
the year (2015: Nil).

Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The provision for the PRC CIT has been provided at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% on the assessable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China (2015: 25%). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“‘LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT
liabilities, the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by
the tax authorities.
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11.

152

INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at
the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates

1. FriE5# =)

BARRRE T EZMBRRZEMALZ
BEROREVREAEERRBRRANS
MzRBERRRERREFEZHRB
ERZHRLERBRE (AVAENRR) &

(i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rates, are as follows: BB E HIRIAT -
2016 2015
—EB—AEF —E-RF
$°000 $000
SPo Tt
Profit before tax SR A5 A A 201,420 501,367
National tax calculated at rates REARNEEANBEER
applicable to profit in the tax A2 REFTE 2
jurisdictions concerned HEMHIA 40,038 93,931
Losses attributable to —HEETERGEZBE
a joint venture - 8,000
Income not subject to tax AR Z WA (40,907) (99,911)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR Z S 64,654 56,197
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 FIAEE 31,869 257,939
Deductible temporary differences RERZ AR EREEER
not recognised 6,253 5,804
Effect of withholding tax at 10% HAREE 2 —RHR BB AR
on the distributable profit of A9 s AR 10% ik
a PRC subsidiary of TR E R EARER
the Group and effect tax at 10% 22— BB B RFIEIN
on the interest income from ERBF S ATR 10% E15
offshore loans of a Hong Kong io)-Z
subsidiary of the Group 8,137 21,736
Tax losses utilised from previous BEFEEFHARIARIE
periods (11,721) —
Utilisation of deductible temporary AN AT FERERN
differences not recognised AMBREREER
in prior years (4,098) (72,049)
LAT + 30 IRET 41,502 334,069
CIT effect of LAT TIIRET 2 PEEHTE (10,376) (83,517)
Tax charge at the Group’s REASEERTERITEZ
effective rate BER X 125,351 522,199
There was no share of tax attributable to a joint venture (2015: Nil). VESIEREEERERE(ZS—0
Fom) e
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12. DIVIDEND 12. KB
The Directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of RAREETEBREEE_T—RF
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). FTZAZF—HIEFEZRBRE (ZF
—hF )
13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. B R BB BEREE AEL
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT BREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREXREE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent over the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during

BRENEBIIEFASARLE
BB ARHEIRRIAD BITER
Pt F I HEE -

the year.
2016 2015
—®-x%  —T-uF
Loss attributable to ordinary [SYNSIESTTIEEZ PN

equity holders of the parent FE{EE1E (FoT)
($'000) 60,663 262,693

Weighted average number BTSN
of ordinary shares in issue (000) FHH (FR) 4,697,347 4,697,347

(b) Diluted loss per share (b)

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y5 - BERRE

Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures, and Motor Leasehold  Construction
own use equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BEER il - #8 HE
BT k&t RE NEEE EEIR @zt
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i r r r r r
31 December 2016 ZE-1¥+tZB=1-H
At31 December 2015and  WZE-RETZA=-Hk
at 1 January 2016: R 45-A-HB:
Cost R 2,892,388 20,590 6,185 42,348 740,924 3,702,435
Accumulated depreciation  ZiFTERGE
and imparment (1,275) (3,822) (3,080) (8,621) (216,585) (233,383)
Net carrying amount RRFE 2,891,113 16,768 3,105 33,727 524,339 3,469,052
At 1 January 2016, net of RZZ—E-A-H
accumulated depreciation (R EFHTERAE)
and impairment 2,891,113 16,768 3,105 33,721 524,339 3,469,052
Additions AE - 2,300 - 10,094 655,585 667,979
Disposals e - (20) (337) - = (357)
Transfer to properties inder ~ BEARYE (M 21)
development (note 21) (1,935,352) - - - - (1,935,352)
Transfer to freehold EEYYES S5
land (note 15) (Firzx15) (897,934) - - - - (897,934)
Trangfer to assets classiied ~ BEZHBARELECEE
as held for sale (note 25) (Pitsz2s) - (8,296) - - (206,254) (214,550)
Depreciation provided during ~ EMEHEZ &
the year (32871) (4,548) (831) (9,605) - (47,855)
Exchange realignment A (18,832) (696) (54) 32) (35,731) (55,345)
At 31 December 2016, netof ~ RZE—A~EF-A=1-H
accumulated depreciation (M 25 ERAE)
and impairment 6,124 5,508 1,883 34,184 937,939 985,638
At 31 December 2016: RIFNETZAST=R:
Cost KA 7,695 10,688 3,855 52,028 937,939 1,012,205
Accumulated depreciation ZEERIE
and impairment (1,57) (5,180) (1,972) (17,844) - (26,567)
Net carrying amount RRFE 6,124 5,508 1,883 34,184 037,939 985,638
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (contivesy 14 ¥J3 ~ MENFEE @

Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures, and Motor Leasehold Construction
own use equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BEER  BiL-RE e
LB HE HE ES RIR @i
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i aw T R i
31 December 2015 “E-Ef+ZF=1-H
At31 December 2014end M ZE-RFFZA=1-H
at 1 January 2015; R=Z5-R5-A-H:
Cost kA 7815 8,731 6,300 58,233 552,992 634,071
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAE
and imparment 913) (1,702) (2,118) 9,791) - (14,524)
Net carrying amount REFE 6,902 7,029 4,182 48,442 552,992 619,647
At 1 January 2015, net of RZZ-nF-A-R
accumulated depreciation (MG EEMEREE)
and impairment 6,902 7,029 4,182 48,442 552,992 619,547
Additions e 785 12,350 - 33,639 236,822 283,496
Transfers from investment LRRENE (i0e)
properties (note 16) 3,067,454 - - - - 3,067,454
Transfer to completed EREECRTINE
properties held for sale - - - (44,469) - (44,469)
Disposals HeE - (12) - - - (12)
Depreciation provided EMERAE
during the year 15 .37) (1,025 3,104 - 6915
Impairment BB - - - - (216,585) (216,585)
Exchange realignment ik (183613) 228 5 (681) 48890 (233464
At 31 December 2015, netof  R=E-FE+-A=+-F
accumulated depreciation (MR 2FHTERAE)
and impairment 2,891,113 16,768 3,105 33,727 524,339 3,469,052
At 31 December 2015: RZF-RFTZA=1+-R:
Cost kA 2,892,388 20,590 6,185 42,348 740,924 3,702,435
Accumulated depreciation ZETERIE
and impaiment (1.275) 3822) (3,080) 8621 (16585 (233383
Net carrying amount BEFE 2,891,113 16,768 3,105 33,727 524,339 3,469,052
As at 31 December 2016, certain items of the Group’s buildings R-ZZE—XRE+-_A=+—"H £A&EEH
held for own use and construction in progress with net carrying IREFED B4 456,124,000 ( = F
amounts of approximately $6,124,000 (2015: $8,435,000) and — A 4F : 8,435,0007T ) K 402,963,000
$402,963,000 (2015: Nil) respectively, were pledged to secure T(ZE—RF : B)Z2EHEERZETF
interest-bearing bank borrowings granted to the Group as MERIRZETHEBEEERER  EA
disclosed in note 28. WS AL BER 25 BRITERZER

(LnBtFE 28 PR EE) o
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15. FREEHOLD LAND

Freehold land represents the land acquisition cost, stamp duty,

legal fee and other acquisition costs in relation to the Group’s

acquired projects which are situated in London and Madrid.

15. KA FE LT b

IR ZERE T IR L AN SR B P UL PR R B
FIRBEE 2 DA - ENTER -
ERE A R EAMEERR -

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
$°000 $'000
o T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—BZEREAE 1,029,952 1,129,596
Additions NE 178,124 —
Transfer from property, plant BEYE  BENEE
and equipment (note 14) (FFzE14) 897,934 —
Transfer to assets classified EEHHERBIELEEE
as held for sale (note 25) (M47E25) (718,123) -
Exchange realignment i 2= B (77,205) (99,644)
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ -A=+—BZEHEE 1,310,682 1,029,952

As at 31 December 2016, certain items of the Group’s freehold

land with a net carrying amount of approximately $255,210,000
(2015: Nil) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 28.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IWE W)

Investment
Completed properties under
investment construction or

properties development Total
B2%T EERERF
REYE REWHE et
$'000 $'000 $°000
T T T
At 1 January 2015 RN-ZE—HF—H—H 2,591,630 570,107 3,161,737
Additions NE 3,364,805 519,593 3,884,398
Transfers from completed EEAECRTYE
properties held for sale 15,220 — 15,220
Transfers between investment  FEZIREMER
properties under construction B3 TIRE W%
and completed investment 2 R
properties 1,081,977 (1,081,977) —
Transfers to owner-occupied EREE A
property (note 14) (fI5E14) (3,067,454) - (3,067,454)
Net gain from a fair value AR EEARKE
adjustment et 15,433 — 15,433
Exchange realignment DE 3, F8EE (153,846) (7,723) (161,569)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—AQF
1 January 2016 —_A=
—E—RF— 3,847,765 — 3,847,765
Net gain from a fair value NABEFAE
adjustment Wz 558 225,959 — 225,959
Reversal of over-accrued FRREEETEERA AN
development costs Zm (27,460) — (27,460)
Exchange realignment b H % (250,553) — (250,553)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RF
+ZA=+—8H 3,795,711 - 3,795,711
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16.

158

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq)

All the completed investment properties and investment properties
under construction or development, including both land and
building elements held by the Group were revalued at the end
of the year based on valuations performed by an independent
qualified valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ”) (2015:
DTZ). DTZ is an industry specialist in investment property valuation,
who has the appropriate qualification and recent experience in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation for completed investment properties was arrived at by
considering the capitalised income to be derived from the existing
tenancies and the reversionary potential of the properties, where
appropriate, by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for the similar properties in the same locations and conditions.
The fair values of investment properties under development are
determined by establishing the market values of the properties
on an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate deduction on
construction costs, professional fees and interests to be incurred
from the valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable
margin. There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

Certain items of the completed investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016, certain items of the Group’s investment
properties with a carrying amount of $1,152,429,000 (2015:
$1,256,002,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
borrowings and undrawn bank facilities granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 28.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 211.

16. WE W @)

FrEERTIRENERERREDEX
RHRIAR  ERAKEFEN L NE
FHERFERBBILABRMAEMNE
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REBELMEFENER -  DRIRE
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EHERMPARFEWRAES - 5
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ABETIATEN] B TREEREDE
e WEEHRGERMETT HE
RELRERRA - EXBH RN
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HEEFE=J - EE— SIS NE
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R-TE—RE+-A=+—H AK£EE
BR M (B £1,152,429,000t( —=F — A
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16. WE W @)
NAEBERER

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

N

Fair value hierarchy

TREHAREREME 2 AR BER

of the Group’s investment properties: =

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2016 categorised into

R-ZE—ARE+-HA=1+—H

ZAREEAESER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— E-® F=H #st
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Recurring fair value mEMAREERE
measurement for:
Commercial properties [EilaEES - - 3,795,711 3,795,711
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2015 categorised into
RZZ—RF+=-A=+—H
ZAREERMENER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 R F= st
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T Tt T
Recurring fair value mEUHAREETE
measurement for:
Commercial properties PERME - - 3,847,765 3,847,765

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil). The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at

the end of the reporting period in which they occur.
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s management has discussion with the valuers on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each reporting date.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable input

BEARFAEE
EEFN BAZH

16. WE W @)

RERE B ETHER

AEBEER

& R BT wmAERR L AES

AT REEMEBEMERZEESR

REZRAZEZ B -
Range
gE
2016 2015
—B-~F T4

Shopping mall Investment approach Prevailing monthly
market rents
per square metre
BABTHAK

Rimsis

A% LB

Reversionary yield

(LIl GRS

Market approach Prevailing
market price
per square metre

[0z BRARITHE

160

RMB38-RMB210

AE¥38TE
AR¥2107T

Mall: 6.0%-7.0%
Store: 5.0%-6.0%
735 © 6.0% Z£7.0%
JEME : 5.0% Z6.0%

RMB46,616

AK#46,616 T

RMB37-RMB211
AREIT LR
AREE2117T

Mall: 6.0%-7.0%
Store: 5.0%-6.0%
% 0 6.0% £ 7.0%

JET : 5.0% Z 6.0%

RMB47,100

AR#47,1007T
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

16. WE W @)

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable input Range
BAFAEE
fEEAR BWAZH gE
2016 2015
ZB-RF —Z£—-n%F
Office Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB180 RMB184
market rents
per square metre
WAE REE BREYAXK AR¥180 T ARE1847T
RiTmsAs
Reversionary yield 6.5% 6.5%
ERkaEE 6.5% 6.5%
Market approach Prevailing RMB37,600 RMB38,300
market price
per square metre
misE BYHABRITHE AR 37,600 T AR#38,3007T
Car parks Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB400-RMB1,500 RMB400-RMB1,500
market rents
per lot
FE5 KREZE A= AR¥400TZE AR¥400LE
BimsHE AR#1,500 7T AR#1,5007C
Reversionary yield 4.5%-5.0% 4.5%-5.0%
EEkER 4.5% Z£5.0% 4.5% %5.0%
Market approach Prevailing market RMB390,000 RMB390,000
price per lot
g% FESEMIRTHE AK#390,000 7T AR 390,0007C

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the independent

valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within the subject

properties and other comparable properties. The higher the rent,

the higher the fair value is. Reversionary yield is estimated by the

independent valuer based on the risk profile of the properties being

valued. The higher the yield, the lower the fair value is.
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17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

17. FE T B EFIE

2016 2015

AL —E—hF

$°000 $000

Fr T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZRAE 18,976 20,432

Amortisation provided FFTHEE 8

during the year (475) (590)
Exchange realignment VE 1 fEE (1,188) (866)
Carrying amount at 31 December W+ _A=+—HZEmEE 17,313 18,976

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments with a net carrying amount of approximately $17,313,000
(2015: $18,976,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 28.

R-Z—XRE+_A=+—8 ~EEE
R E#) 217,313,000 C( Z T — R F ¢
18,976,000t ) Z FEfT THb I ERIBE 1
IR ERISASEBEER 25T BRI TE
R ER (GBI EE 28 AR ) ©

==
18. GOODWILL 18. B8
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hF
$’000 $°000
T FT
At 1 January: n—A—A8:
Cost BN 372,324 372,324
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (369,007) (369,007)
Exchange realignment b H 13,397 14,152
Net carrying amount BREFE 16,714 17,469
Exchange realignment E H T (1,060) (755)
Carrying amount BRMEE 15,654 16,714
At 31 December: FEhE F St
Cost PR 372,324 372,324
Accumulated impairment ZERE (369,007) (369,007)
Exchange realignment M 34,38 B 12,337 13,397
Net carrying amount RESE 15,654 16,714
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18. GOODWILL (continueq)

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Amazing Wise Limited in 2008. The cost of the goodwiill
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of Amazing Wise Limited as at
the acquisition date.

The Group carried out impairment testing of goodwill at the
end of each reporting period. In assessing the impairment of
goodwill, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(“CGU”) is determined. The CGU related to the goodwill includes
all subsidiaries located in Fuzhou. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the recoverable amount of the CGU was re-
determined and accordingly, no additional impairment loss was
provided (2015: Nil).

19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

18. & )

BEELA T )\ F W E Amazing
Wise Limited 2 23 2 21T - i 2 2
P 7S 5 U5 B AN R 780 7N &R B 7 Amazing
Wise Limited 2 A] &R & E ~ BERSA
BERKERIAZ A FE S -

AREENEREPRETEHE ZREAR
A RNAHHERERETRSELSE
(HReELBEM]) ZAIKREEER - &
BEAMcASELEM RN EM
ZEHHMBAR - BE_T-AREFTZ
A=t—RLFE ReELEGZA
WElERRESHHET - WARFHERRINE
BEER(ZE—HF :8\)-

19. A —REISEEEZRE

2016 2015
—E—-XREF —E—RF
$’000 $'000
T Tt
Share of net assets DMEZEEFE - —
Loans to a joint venture BERF—HeetzE 506,752 509,988
506,752 509,988
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19.

164

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

19. R—EEELE2RE @)

AEBEEREZFROT -

Percentage of

Particulars Place of TSR EZEDL
of issued registration = Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name shares held and business interest power sharing activities
e 1T Bk e
=L MR EE1E R R REE S2ER FEEWR
Ridong (Gold Coast) AUD Australia 55% 55% 55% Property
Development 4,583,622 development
Pty Ltd (“Ridong”)
4,583,622 P EH] MEER
RIT

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of loss of
Ridong because the share of loss of the joint venture exceeded
the Group’s interest in the joint venture and the Group has no
obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the Group’s
unrecognised share of loss of this joint venture for the current
year and cumulatively were $12,861,000 (2015: $3,730,000) and
$16,591,000 (2015: $3,730,000), respectively.

HRASEEEEEECEBREBEA
SEREEREER  URAEEE
ST —FERERBE WAEEDRIE
R FE (L Ridong 2 518 + AE B RHER
BIEZAEECENAFEBBLRNE
B R A12,861,000L( — T —HEF
3,730,000t ) % 16,591,0007t( = =
—F4F ¢ 3,730,0007T) °
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 19. R—EEELEZERE @
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TREFEFRidong ZHEERRE
in respect of Ridong adjusted for any differences in accounting FEHBR 2 EMEZEFEHARE  k#
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial RE VTSR RAEEITHR

statements:

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-hF
$°000 $000
T Tt
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEYD 1,993 52,404
Other current assets HivmBh&EE 3,794 3,694
Current assets MEVEE 5,787 56,098
Non-current assets IEmENEE 1,599,217 895,119
Current liabilities mEAE (495,121) (30,748)
Non-current liabilities ERBAGE (1,140,048) (927,250)
Net liabilities BEFE (30,165) (6,781)
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest HAREENZEERE
in the joint venture: R 2 HER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEMERE LI 55% 55%
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hF
$°000 $000
P Tt
Revenue Uz 24 3
Interest income FEBA 2,092 3,281
Depreciation and amortisation Pres i (7,323) (3,614)
Interest expenses FMERAX (8,606) —
Loss and total comprehensive loss REEZEER
for the year FHEIBERE (23,384) (58,050)
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. BIEHEEER AR
The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities) AEERGE T BERRARER ZELER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and BEE/ (BBE)RKSRFERNBENT :

the movements during the year are as follows:

Revaluation
of properties LAT Tax losses Others Total
MESME LHIZEH BEER Hite wet
$000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
T T Fr T Fr
At 1 January 2015 WZZE—HF—F—H (470,958) 53,759 20,189 49760  (347,250)
Deferred tax credited/ AEEHA/ (NBRAE)
(charged) to the statement 1Bz 3 2 IRIEF IR
of profit or loss (BFzE11)
during the year (note 11) 23,267 (2,501) (1,762) (47,666) (28,662)
Exchange differences bEE 5 278 10,689 (2,248) 5214 811) 12,844
At 31 December 2015 RZZT—RF
and 1 January 2016 +ZR=+—HBk
—E-R"F—-A—H (437,002) 49,010 23,641 1,283 (363,068)
Deferred tax AEE (MBRE) /FTA
(charged)/credited BRREEHE
to the statement (BIRE11)
of profit or loss
during the year (note 11) (34,986) (6,350) 15,924 (20,427) (45,839)
Exchange differences B2 34,279 (2,900) (3,964) 175 27,590
At 31 December 2016 N_T—REF
+=-A=+—AH (437,709) 39,760 35,601 (18,969)  (381,317)
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20. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. EEHRBEEREE @

(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RAEM IR 2 HER
2016 2015
—B-AF —TRF
$°000 $000
T T
Deferred tax assets RIETIAEE 139,665 156,798
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE (520,982) (519,866)
(381,317) (363,068)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

ARRBIALARBLIATIEE BRBELHAER

=

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—AHF

$°000 $’000

Frx Frx

Unused tax credits REATIBE R 140,189 257,939
Deductible temporary differences AR EREER 7,959 5,804
148,148 263,743

The above tax losses mainly arose in Mainland China, Hong Kong,
the United Kingdom and Spain. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the above items as it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
above items can be utilised.
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20.

21.

168

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, 5% to 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. As at 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately $48,563,000 at 31
December 2016 (2015: $45,472,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are expected to be completed
within the normal operating cycle and recovered:

20.

21.

ELEHIEEEREE @

BEPECERETE - RRANELE
FEETIRKR AR BN 2 INE
P ENRREHWE5% E10% BN -
B A 3 BR ANED 45 B B T RARE R 2
MEBHRBKESR A ZREBEMNH
MEREH - R_E—RNF+_A=+—
H - NEBN KRR EERE AT 2
BT A BB S AX T 0B /O R BB B B
REBERNENRAELERIE =5
RE ZEMBLRENRA R RS IR
ERARFHEETK - RZT—RF
+TZA=1T—08 " RPEEAHMHE QR
M EBBNEREERBBHETH
48,563,000 7L ( —ZZF—Hh4F : 45,472,000
TL) - WAESL M RERIELEEIEAE -

AR ) A B B BRI A e B 32 KBS A P AR

A
Mz o

(ERELIE S

ERYERASBRERLEBHATT
WH 5 EEARE

2016 2015

—E-REF —E—RF

$°000 $°000

ST Fr

Over one year —Fi% 4,357,658 2,501,950
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—BZKRHEE 4,357,658 2,501,950
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21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued) 21, TEZZYIZ &)

An analysis of the carrying amounts of freehold land included in BB D AGENE I KAEREL
properties for sale by lease terms is as follows: 2 BREMEDHTIAT -
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RF
$’000 $000
Tt T+
Freehold land in the United Kingdom R 2 KA SR 672,440 833,846
Freehold land in Madrid REEEZKAERELI - 744,542
Freehold land in the USA PR 2 Sk A SR £ 3 597,718 —
Freehold land in Australia (note 14) FOBRARTE 2 KA SR T4
(HtsE14) 1,935,352 —
3,205,510 1,578,388
Properties under development represent the project cost, land Y EERBASEAARRAMEE
acquisition cost, compensation cost and other preliminary RERXBEZMERMERE ZHE K
infrastructure costs in relation to the Group’s property development A EHWERA - FREMEER A
projects situated in Australia, the United Kingdom and the USA. AT R A ©
As at 31 December 2016, certain items of the Group’s properties RZFB-—R"FE+A=+—R0  X&HE
under development with a carrying amount of $1,734,188,000 IR ™ 1B 51,734,188,000c( = F — &
(2015: Nil) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank FE)ZEEMEZETRADER
borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 28. B ERRGAEEER 2 BRITHE

A PR (LRI RE 28 PRIRER) -
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/ AY A I 22
22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 22. FECHRIYE
All the properties held for sale are stated at cost. The Group’s FrERFEMEUKARTIER « NEBE 2 AF
completed properties held for sale are situated in Mainland China. EERTYWETRFEAL -
An analysis of the carrying amounts of completed properties held EHBEI D v FEERTYEREE
for sale by lease terms is as follows: DT
2016 2015
AL —E-RF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Held under: BUATHORES
—long-term leases (over 50 years) — R REEY
in the PRC (83850 4F) 49,112 93,258
—medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) — A 2 FhERFRAY
in the PRC (10E504F) 201,115 218,870
250,227 312,128
As at 31 December 2016, certain items of the Group’s completed RZE—RF+ZA=+—H0 *x&E
properties held for sale with a carrying amount of $8,972,000 BE {8 &8,972,000T( — T — f F :
(2015: $9,580,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank 9,580,00070) ZfFECR R TIME AT
borrowings and undrawn bank facilities granted to the Group as HEEEET - FARGASEER Y
disclosed in note 28. FPESRITER R M AIRIMBITEE CE

1R (UOMI3E 28 FTHER) ©
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

3. E5 R EMEWIR

2016 2015

—EB—XE —E-RF

$’000 $000

T T

Trade receivables (note (a)) B 5 FEWGRIAE (5T (@) 4,026 65,253

Prepayments TERTFIR 310 2,847

Deposits and other receivables e R HAEY IR 34,569 497,515

Amounts due from related parties IR A 708 3,201 8,118
Amounts due from an intermediate FEM — R EER A

holding company 1,870 1,870

43,976 575,603

The amounts due from related parties and an intermediate holding FEURAE AT R —EHREER AT 2R

company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

For the trade receivables arising from the sale of properties, the
Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving cash before
delivery of properties. The Group has set out policies to ensure
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group also
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable balance to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The maximum exposure to credit
risk without taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment allowance.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

RIEER - 25 &?ﬁ%“é/\@

SLHEMEEL 2B 5 REGIAM S -
$‘§ILLE§H¢%¥ETJH&HX%%&E$
BEFEERR - ANEE D EBRR AR
PRERENERAE ﬂ@)ﬂ&@‘@%ﬁ%ﬁ% o R E
IR E HIE B & R E R B 5 R WA
ZAE SR - ARSI N E SR
EHFERZBERR - # EEJHSZFE%E’
ZAERER R - RS EERRRMB
ARREKRAEEE Héﬁzﬁﬁﬁfﬁm R
[ERERIEEIE

171



Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23. EZ R HAMEWFRIE @
Note: BfE -
(@  The aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date is @ RIEERHE - BHEUGIEZERSD
as follows: R -
2016 2015
—B—ARF —T—RF
$°000 $'000
S Tt
Within 3 months =EAN 3,554 64,994
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBim={AAEXEAR 223 _
Over 6 months but within 12 months ~ H@ENERE+—EAR 25 —
Over 12 months wBim+—EA 224 259
4,026 65,253
At 31 December 2016, no impairment allowance is necessary in RZE—RF+ZA=+—H0 BHRE
respect of the Group’s trade receivables as management considers BERASRBERIEENE - WHBE
that the balance is fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any MAREB 2B 5 EWFIEE L R EE
collateral over the balance (2015: Nil). o REEB RS A AR 2 EMEA
m(ZE—heF: |\
24, RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 24. ZIRFERITFRAUARIRE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RIREEEY
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
$’000 $000
ST Tt
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTHE 3,165,786 2,961,243
Time deposits JE BT 5K 17,632 7,758
3,183,418 2,969,001
Less: Pledged for long-term bank loans & : B A KHIRITE ZILH (7,771) (8,589)
Pledged for performance guarantees B AR KR (10,365) —
An escrow account pledged for B AR TZEA
construction work ZIEERF (484,720) —
Pledged for bank acceptance bills B ARIRTTAE ZEAEH = (2,148)
(502,856) (10,737)
Cash and cash equivalents He kRS EY 2,680,562 2,958,264
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24. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to $986,941,000 (2015:
$1,477,319,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounting to $505,000 and time deposits amounting to
$7,266,000 (2015: cash and bank balances amounting to
$831,000 and time deposits amounting to $7,758,000) were
pledged to secure interest-bearing bank borrowings granted to the
Group as disclosed in note 28.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group deposited funds amounting
to $484,720,000 (2015: Nil) in an escrow account as guarantees
for the settlement of construction billings.
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TR A831,000 L 2R & RIBITHEBR K
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25.

174

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

On 3 November 2016, Wanda Europe, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with Baraka
Global Invest, S.L.U. (“Baraka”), pursuant to which Wanda Europe
has conditionally agreed to sell, and Baraka has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Wanda Madrid
Development, S.L.U. (the “Target Company”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Wanda Europe) at a consideration of EUR272 million,
subject to the consideration adjustment by taking into account
the amount of cash and cash equivalents and indebtedness of the
Target Company as at the date of completion of the disposal.

The Company has obtained a written approval for the agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder from Wanda
Commercial Properties Overseas Limited, a controlling shareholder
of the Company. The disposal of the Target Company is expected
to be completed at 31 March 2017 or such earlier date as may be
agreed in writing between Wanda Europe and Baraka.

As the consideration expected to exceed the net carrying amounts
of the relevant assets and liabilities attributable to the Target
Company, no impairment loss has been recognised.

The assets and liabilities attributable to the Target Company have
been reclassified as assets and liabilities held for sale and are
separately presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

’\’;%TM’EHQ"EZQF&

=L
R-E—XNFE+—A=ZH  ARQRAZ
3F£§W 2N A 8 = BN &2 Baraka

Global Invest, S.L.U.([Barakal]) & 37
e Bt BEBRNEBSKHRE
i & M Baraka B & & 4 [ 2 AKX B
272,000,000 7T Y # Wanda Madrid
Development, S.L.U. ([ B1ZQ&] | B
BNz 2EHB A 7)Z£uBE§XﬁHX
A ERELH N EEREKBERZ
RAZBSRBACFEY LB ESER
Al T LARREE o

RATEESRARIERKR R SEGE
HEBFINER A RIBLaL s R L IE T
EORG2E@E - BHHERER
AR -_E—trtF=ZA=1t—"Hz &=
M £ Baraka A R E E 0 E < B F B 3
TERK ©
RARTEARESEREERRIENL 28
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25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

(@) Details of assets of the Target Company classified as held for
sale as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:

25.

DEAFHECZEER

=1 15, ()

@ BEARR-_Z—XRF+_-A
B EARBELECEE
BT

2016
—E—RE
$°000
Fx

Property, plant and W - B NEE
equipment (note 14) (Bf3E14) 8,296
Construction in progress (note 14) AEZ T2 (&£ 14) 206,254
Freehold land (note 15) KA ZERE L (BIRE15) 718,123
Properties under development EEME 1,082,327
Trade and other receivables 5 K H A W IR 2,888
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 14,867
Assets classified as held for sale ~ D ERFHIELEZEE 2,032,755

(b) Details of liabilities directly associated with the assets by HEEARRKRZ-ZE—RF+A

of the Target Company classified as held for sale as at
31 December 2016 were as follows:

ST HZOBEARIFHEZEE
BEERARZAEZFEET

2016
—E-RF
$°000
T
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMERFRIE 2,043
Liabilities directly associated HABAREHEZ

with the assets classified BEAZABAE

as held for sale 2,043
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25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 25

(©)

HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

Cumulative expense recognised in other comprehensive

loss relating to assets and liabilities associated with assets

classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2016 was as

BRAFFLHEZEER

5. %
BEw

© HR-_ZT—XRF+-_A=1+—8BZ
DEASERECEERBECEE
LEeEaM AR EMmEmEEE

follows: R BFHAZIT -
2016
—E—RE
$’000
7
Exchange reserve on WMEGINETE 2
translation of foreign operations b 5 R (698,404)
= =+
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. E5 K HMENFIE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hF
$°000 $000
o Tt
Trade payables (note (a)) & 5 FaE (K (a) 396,777 451,826
Other payables H e FRIE 191,547 177,365
Accruals fEETE A 1,882 1,857
Interest payable to related parties FESREE A L F B (Fi3E ()
(note (b)) 96,358 59,454
Interest payable to an intermediate FEAS — AR AR R &) F S
holding company (note (b)) (FF3E (b)) 344,712 220,298
Interest payable to financial institutions ~ FE{ 4 BIHERE R 5, 23,891 23,757
Amounts due to intermediate holding FEAS R AR A B 5RIE
companies (note (c)) (FisE () 3,424,850 1,127,430
Amounts due to related parties (note (c)) FEfTREE A £2IB (KitE(c)) 2,773 18,779
4,482,790 2,080,766
Portion classified as current liabilities NEARBEEIHS (4,138,078) (1,860,468)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 2 344,712 220,298
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

None of the Group’s trade payables are expected to be settled after
more than one year (2015: Nil).

The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date is as

follows:

6. BEF R EAMENTRIE @)
Wi
@ AT S RO B

—FREE(ZE-0F )

RIFEZABZESRNFRAZRED

o

Within 3 months

Over 3 months but within 6 months
Over 6 months but within 12 months
Over 12 months

=EAR
HE=EAENEAR
BN EAE+ —EAR
HBid+ =& A

The amount of $344,712,000 in interest payable to an intermediate
holding company is repayable after more than one year (2015:
$220,298,000), while the interest payable to related parties is
repayable on demand or within one year. These interest payables are
unsecured and not subject to compound interests.

The amounts due to intermediate holding companies and related
parties are repayable on demand or within one year and all these
balances are unsecured and interest-free.

27. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

Advances from customers represent sales proceeds received from

buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF

$°000 $°000

S T

142,541 434,259

16,910 7,015

15,892 37

221,434 10,515

396,777 451,826

) BN —HPBEIERQAFNE

344,712,000 7T A 2 iféf%‘z%(_j
— % 1 220,298,0007T ) * JE < B &

ATHMBRBRERFIN—FREE - %
ERNNE AR N BESER -

© BENPEERARREEALZAY

ﬁﬁihz;z?ﬁiﬁé\ iﬁﬂ B8 - MazFHER
EHREEARRE -

27. FaURFE

BEPERERAEEREZYWEMAE
JTURER 2 $HE P S5R08
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=, A4 =%
28. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 28. ERIKBE R
Loans from financial institutions were repayable as follows: SR E R BT ¢
2016 2015
—¥-AE  -T-InF
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt
Current: BNER :
Bank loans — secured RITER — BEMA 1,627,784 1,539,783
Non-current: FERNHR :
Bank loans — secured RITER — BEMA 1,743,994 1,350,612
3,371,778 2,890,395
Repayable: B
Within 1 year or on demand —FAFIREK 1,627,784 1,539,783
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 163,514 314,493
After 2 years but within 5 years WMERBRFNA 1,544,544 955,892
After 5 years hFiE 35,936 80,227
3,371,778 2,890,395
The Group’s bank borrowings bear interest at floating rates. The NEB ZRTETIZZEFRTE - F
range of the effective interest rates during the year is as follows: NZEBBRFEEENT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
Effective interest rates BEEFI%E 2.16%-5.46% 2.60%-6.90%
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28. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

(Continued)

(@ As at 31 December 2016, undrawn bank facilities of the
Group amounted to $3,329,515,000 (2015: Nil).

(b)  Certain loans from financial institutions as at 31 December
2016 were guaranteed by Mr. Chen Chang Wei (“Mr. Chen”).

(c) Certain loans from financial institutions as at 31 December
2016 were guaranteed by an intermediate holding company,
Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. and part of
them were also secured by the shares of Wanda Madrid
Development, S.L.U..

The carrying amounts of all the Group’s borrowings during the
year were denominated in RMB, GBP, and US$. The denominated

28. TRIMIBE R (@)

RZE-—RFE+-A=+—8"
AEBHRARDNZELITEER
3,329,515,0007L( = & — A F :
) o

RZFB-—R"E+ZA=t—H %&
TERBEERBREELRE (R
A FER

R-ZE—RFE+-A=+—1H &
FomEEERA —MPEER
NRAIKNEBERMEMERNHBRA
AJHER + #8978 LA Wanda Madrid
Development, S.L.U. 2 % {7 1& &
4 o

TR AREZ2HERZREEG N
ARE  REREXTHE - RERZE

amounts at the year-end are as follows: BEHESRENT ¢
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
$°000 $'000
T T
RMB loans and borrowings ARBEZRRER 393,823 502,455
GBP loans and borrowings REEFRER 1,426,935 1,147,780
US$ loans and borrowings ETLERMER 1,551,020 1,240,160
3,371,778 2,890,395
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28. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 28. TRIMIBE R (@)

(Continued)

Assets of the Group pledged to secure the loans from financial REBCERFURSSRKEER R

institutions and bank facilities comprise: RITEECEERE
2016 2015
—AE —E—RF
$’000 $'000
o Tt
Buildings held for own use (note 14) BIEERZEF (M5 14) 6,124 8,435
Construction in progress (note 14) TR (KIsE14) 402,963 —
Freehold land (note 15) KA ZERE LM (FIEE15) 255,210 —
Investment properties (note 16) K& (M5 16) 1,152,429 1,256,002
Prepaid land lease payments (note 17)  J&{+ i A& FI5 (Fi5E17) 17,313 18,976
Properties under development (note 21)  FEE¥EE (FI5E21) 1,734,188 —
Completed properties for sale (note 22)  FEC R T Y (Mit22) 8,972 9,580
Restricted bank deposits (note 24) SRR HIERITF R (FIFE24) 7,771 8,589
3,584,970 1,301,582
29. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES AND AN 9. BAE A+ K — & R
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY NEER
Loans from related parties and an intermediate holding company BEATE—MPEERARERZE
were repayable as follows: AT ¢
2016 2015
—~E —E—RF
Notes $’°000 $000
B s Fx Fr
Current: BNHA :
Loans from related parties ?afij\ig a 231,964 141,553
Loans from an intermediate ] AR A =)
holding company E?X b 684,380 —
916,344 141,553
Non-current: JERNER
Loans from related parties BiEALTER a 34,332 189,194
Loans from an intermediate —fEPEER AT
holding company =8N b 4,109,095 5,629,832
4,143,427 5,819,026
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29. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES AND AN 29. Eﬁ?@)&i&—%ﬁﬁlﬂ%ﬂ%)ﬂﬁ

INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (continued) NEIEFK #)
Notes: BfE -
a.  The loans were obtained from entities controlled by Mr. Chen, who a EBRRU®AQEZBRERELEESZ

is a shareholder of the Company. Certain loans from the entity FEEHE - REK 5’& EEH 2B
controlled by Mr. Chen, amounting to $45,142,000 (31 December 245142000t ( —ZE—HF+=A
2015:$48,199,000) that bear interest at 15% per annum, are =+—H -48,199,0007E) T T ERIZ
unsecured and repayable six months after the date of the respective FREAS%ETE - BEKFTERE
drawdowns, and the interest generated for the period from 1 April K2 & BIREA Hﬂ?é/‘*\fﬂ AEE -
2016 to 31 December 2016 has been waived by the lender. Certain BERAEREZZT—"FNA—HZE
loans from another entity controlled by Mr. Chen, amounting to ZE-RF+= ﬂ +—HEMEEAL
$221,154,000 (31 December 2015: $282,548,000) that bear interest ZHE e REREEEN 2 S —HEE
at 11% and 13.5% per annum, are unsecured and repayable from 2221154000 (ZE—HF+=A
nine months to twenty-one months after the date of the respective =+ —H :282,548,0007T) & TEX
drawdowns. Interest incurred during the year ended 31 December REREI1% 2 13.5% 51 B - B &K
2016 and interest payable to related parties as at 31 December WIWERER 2 & BRI A BENEA
2016 are set out in notes 8 and 26 respectively. ET—EAAREER - BHE_T—AF
TZA=T-RILEFEEEZFSRR
—E—RF+ZA=t+—HERMNEEA
T2 FE5 RIERAFTEE S K 26 ©

IR - AEE P REER AR 22
Bz BRI EGIAREE - BoT %75&

b. The carrying amounts of all the Group’s loans from an intermediate b.
holding company during the period were denominated in GBP, EUR, US$

and AUD. The denominated amounts at the year-end are as follows:

BITRHE « RERZEEHESENT ¢

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hF
Notes $’000 $'000
k=3 Frx T
GBP loans and borrowings HEERRER 0] 1,423,583 1,373,291
EUR loans and borrowings BT E TR (i) 1,091,450 1,131,590
US$ loans and borrowings ETTERRER (ii) 684,380 683,771
AUD loans and borrowings SBITER KGR (ii) 431,530 1,271,226
AUD loans and borrowings SBITER KGR (ii) 1,162,532 1,169,954
4,793,475 5,629,832
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29. LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES AND AN
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) These loans bear interest at a rate of six month LIBOR plus 5%
per annum, certain items of which are secured by the shares
of Wanda International Real Estate Investment Limited held by
the Company.

(ii) These loans are interest-free.

(iii) These loans bear interest at a rate of 7.25% per annum.

C. As at 31 December 2016, undrawn facilities granted by an intermediate
holding Company to the Group amounted to $4,032,652,000 (2015:
$4,030,520,000).

d. Interest incurred during the year ended 31 December 2016 and

interest payable to an intermediate holding company as at 31
December 2016 are set out in notes 8 and 26 respectively.

30. CURRENT TAXATION

29. FEA T K —BEHPEZER

NaEEF @

MsE (4

GEE

U

(i)

(i)

ZEERIZNE R BBERTTRE
HREMFFE%ETE - EFET
HEUARRBESAENEERER
EREBR AR ERER -

c. MIE-—RE+ZA=1+—8 &—H
R A A A A R E R 2 R ERER

=y

a A=

54,032,652,000( —F — R 4F:

4,030,520,0007T) ©

d BEZT-AFTZAST-ALF
BEEZRBRR-B—<FT=A
=+~ B R R A 72 8
SRS 26 -

30. BNHARL IE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RF
$°000 $°000
SFoE T

Prepaid tax: TETFIIR ¢
PRC Land Appreciation Tax FR B 1t 3B (E AR 752 87
752 87
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30. CURRENT TAXATION (continued) 30. BHARA IE (&)

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
$°000 $000
=P T
Current tax payable: FES BN HATR I :
PRC Corporate Income Tax RIS (29,794) (136,146)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax AP ER 1 b I (E TR (178,220) (350,126)
(208,014) (486,272)
JL
31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. A<
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—HF
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
BB &8 B k|
’000 $°000 ’000 $°000
T Bz T Fix F7T
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
Ordinary shares of HE®ECITZ
$0.1 each LB
At 1 January and R—HA—B K
31 December +=—A=+—8H 4,697,347 469,735 4,697,347 469,735
Note: L -
0] The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as (i) TRRFEABRBDRIAREIR 2K
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share B WHAERARARIEZ LIEGR—F

at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

BERR - B EBRAARRRSE
EZAREER -
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32. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

184

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 79 of
the financial statements.

Nature and purpose of reserves
Share premium

The application of the share premium is governed by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in Mainland China is required to allocate 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations in the PRC, the United
Kingdom, Spain, Australia, the British Virgin Islands and the
USA.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital
of the Company’s subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in connection
with group reorganisation; and (i) adjustments made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
the change in relative interests as a result of changes in the
Group’s interests in Amazing Wise Limited that do not result
in a loss of control.

32. e

(a)

(b)

RAFEIBEFE - NEB 2R
BRESBHSERYBRRFET
HAZEABEEHRANZS -

RBEER AR
IR 158

BiraBzERTARE—NN\—
FREVERE -

EERERHE

REFERARELRTERER QT
ZIARAZER  AEERTE
M EM 2 SHBARARER
7 BL 10% BORR TR &5 7 (IR B
SRIHIRETE) BAERBBRRFHE -
BEERFHRBERS BEMELRN
50% °

B

REEZES R emrEPE -
HRE - BT RAND  RERE
LERBREBEB M BRERESE
ZFIBINEZRR ©

Rl e

AR BRI S () AN A R PT IS
MEAE 2 IRAEEEEEAN T
MEESBEMETZROEELE
B RBERRIFERERZ S
BIEL 2% - URBMAREER
Amazing Wise Limited 2 1 %5 % &)
(WG KT hIE) RESE 27

SRS EE -
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
Distributable reserves

The Company’s share premium, capital reserve, special
reserve and retained profits as at 31 December 2016 may
be distributable to shareholders, after netting off with the
convertible bond reserve in certain circumstances prescribed
by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

As at 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
was $1,948,511,000 (2015: $2,170,337,000).

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: Nil).
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32. e

(b)

REMENARE@#E)
Al DRGNS

RZT—RF+ZA=+—H" 'K
RAZ BB - BAREE - Fh
EREMREENRARE— NN\~
FREVEFRSAMGFTREZETIE
U NER AT AR E S R AT R D
IR T AR o

RZBE—RF+-A=+—H 7
HORTARRE=FTEAZLR
#4858 £1,948,511,000L( = &
—F4 :2,170,337,0007C) °

RABEETERRBHE_T

—RNET-A=+—BHIEEZK’
B(ZZ—hF #|)-
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33. A ERFERERAIED
DHEEME R F
TRUSIR SRS EA RS

MEBARMER - TXARMEERR
2RARAEEARREMIENEE

33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following tables list out the information relating to subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).
The summarised financial information presented below represents

the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Wanda Wanda Wanda Wanda
International Wanda Europe Americas Australia
Real Estate Properties Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate
Investment Investment Investment Investment Investment
Amazing Wise Co., Limited Limited Co., Limited Co., Limited Co., Limited
Group Group Group Group Group Group
BEERLE BEBY EEEUNMGE BEXIMRE  EERME
Amazing Wise ~ BREBRAR REBRAF REBRAR REBRAT REBRAR
£B £8 £B £H £8 £B
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr T Fr T Fr Fr
2016 E-RE
Percentage of equity interest ~ FEZRRIEZEE
held by NCI HERADL 47% 40% 49% 40% 40% 40%
(Loss)/profit for the year AETHERERN
allocated to NCI AERE (B8) /57 (18,973) (34,180) 109,640 84,151 (15,987) 12,081
Dividends declared to NCI EIRTHERER
AR S, - - - - - -
Accumulated balances of R B B R
NCl at the reporting date BRZi6E 541,835 (10,826) 406,579 (138,373) 198,504 (63,908)
2015 —Z-h%
Percentage of equity interest ~ FHZRRIEZEE
held by NCI HMERANL 47% 40% 49% 40% 40% 40%
(Loss)/profit for the year AETHERERN
allocated to NCI KERE (B8) /BF (5,267) (45,085) 413,065 (70,247) (6,288) (44,317)
Dividends declared to NCI EIRTHERER
AR, - — - - - -
Accumulated balances of W B IR FEE AR
NCl at the reporting date BRZHE 593,818 7,992 366,780 (188,237) 4,449 (74,600)
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

33. R B RIS
DTHEEHE QR @)

(Continued)
Wanda Wanda Wanda Wanda
International Wanda Europe Americas Australia
Real Estate Properties Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate
Investment Investment Investment Investment Investment
Amazing Wise Co., Limited Limited Co., Limited Co., Limited Co., Limited
Group Group Group Group Group Group
BEERLE EEEX BEEMME BEIMBE  BERMLE
AmazingWise ~ REBRAR  REGRAR  REBRAR REEGRARN  REARLR
£B £H &8 &8 8 £B
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $°000 $000
i i i Fr i i
2016 X%
Revenue Wi 111,088 - 139,041 - - 124,037
Total expense and BRZREM
other net (loss)/gain (B8) WmiE (150,211) (85,449) 84,713 210,376 (34,581) (93,834)
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE(B8) /57 (39,123) (85,449) 223,754 210,376 (34,581) 30,203
Total comprehensive loss AEEREBELE
for the year (39,123) (85,449) 223,754 210,376 (34,581) 30,203
Current assets RYEE 100,467 2,614,419 1,174,324 2,667,298 1,225,909 2,057,732
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,342,588 671,180 1,523,274 - 670,831 1,546,256
Current liabilities nHEE (660,936) (194,604) (1,725,357) (1,921,780) (1,740,959) (3,332,229)
Non-current liabilities FRBaE (729,884) (3,118,060) (142,489) (1,091,450) - (431,530)
NCI iR (89,217) - - - (226,986) -
Net cash flows from/ EL/ ()2
(used in) RemEFE
operating activities Ky 177,940 (176,265) (392,785) 195,915 366,029 (9,773)
investing activities REED 1,254 (158,480) 14,521 163 (1,079,780) (44,794)
financing activities BEEH (207,387) 488,488 - - 838,081 -
Effect of foreign exchange Exggs g2
rate changes (2,255) (163,142) (77,394) (15,385) 43 (262)
Net increase/(decrease) in BeRELEEN
cash and cash equivalents i/ (R))FE (30,448) (9,399) (455,658) 180,693 124,373 (54,829)
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 33. BB AR IERERAVED
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 2 HERME D F 0
(Continued)

Wanda Wanda Wanda Wanda
International Wanda Europe Americas Australia
Real Estate Properties Real Estate Real Estate Real Estate
Investment Investment Investment Investment Investment
Amazing Wise Co., Limited Limited Co., Limited Co., Limited Co., Limited
Group Group Group Group Group Group
BEBRE BEEX EERUIME EBERimE  BERMME
AmazingWise ~ REBBAF  BREBBAF  BEBRAR REBMAR REBBLF
£E £ £ £ £l £E
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T Tr T T
2015 1%
Revenue e 182,074 - 1,896,332 - - 98,331
Total expense and Ry kA
other net (loss)/gain (BR) g (199,546) (112,713) (1,053,342) (175,618) (13,390) (209,124)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEEEH/ (B8 (17,472) (112,713) 842,990 (175,618) (13,390) (110,799)
Total comprehensive loss AEEREEELE
for the year (17,472) (112,713) 842,990 (175,618) (13,390) (110,799)
Current assets MBEE 197,119 2,903,850 1,688,301 1,408,609 19,539 70,172
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,510,610 550,298 1,419,902 959,198 83,797 3,506,198
Current liabilities nBaE (629,337) (1,822,819 (2,262,666) (2,838,402) (106,918) (3,756,678)
Non-current liabilities FRBaE (1,026,337) (1,611,346) (97,006) - - (6,208)
NCI FERIER (98,778) - - - (9,802) -
Net cash flows (FR)/E%EZ
(used in)/from Reness
operating activities ESNET) (350,288) (279,984) 386,225 445,990 50,730 2,431,348
investing activities REEE 73,159 (156,708) (605,923) (1,269) (74,277) (3,387,009)
financing activities BEEE 307,280 1,086,624 - - 6,200 1,020,587
Effect of foreign exchange Exgg s ga
rate changes (4818 (29,860) (92,072) (28,257) (20) 3810

Net increase/(decrease) in ReRASEEN
cash and cash equivalents #i/(Rd)FE 25,333 620,072 (211,770) 416,464 (17,367) 68,740
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following commitments for property
development expenditure at the end of the reporting period:

34, BAHIE

RIRE IR - AREYEBER T 2
EmT

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—HhF

$°000 $°000

T Tt

Contracted, but not provided for EEENEESET 5,651,166 1,712,165

The above commitments mainly include construction related costs
to be incurred in respect of the Group’s property development
projects.

35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s loans from financial institutions, which are
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 28 to
the financial statements.

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 16 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements on
terms ranging from two to fifteen years and with an option for
renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated.
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PAEIEZRERAEEYEERIA
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35. BEEEHA

AEFBRBEEEMERNSREEE
R FHB RN B T R R P RE 28 ©

36. KEHEHRIE
fEBHEA

AEERBEEHELHEBAREYE
(HmEME16) BN F_E+H
FoARERRBZER  YEHMHE
FRE 16K
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29 207 4 _
36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continuea) 6. REHEAIE @
As lessor (Continued) EABEBEA #®)
The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non- R E AR IR B H F AR A BT 32 2 N AT
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: KEESN TIEBRE 2 KRR & e
Wi e 4agEmT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FhF
$°000 $000
T Ft
Within one year —&FR 131,706 297,009
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MEZhEF (BIEBEFE) 404,670 666,204
After five years HEF® 321,746 1,350,403
858,122 2,313,616
As lessee fERAEA
The Group leases certain office premises under operating lease AEERBEEHELTHHEESE THA
arrangements, negotiated for terms ranging from three to six years EVE - BEMEBANF=Z"F AR
with an option for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all [EmERIRER - WEHNMBRAEER -

terms will be renegotiated.

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non- REERBAAIHEHELCEHEN T
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: MBI B2 KRR E D ER 2 10 & H 540
T~
2016 2015
b AY:S —ZE-NfF
$’000 $000
T FT
Within one year —FK 16,430 13,786
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MEERF (RREEREFE) 29,689 28,951
After five years hFE 1,508 8,452
47,627 51,189
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37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

37. RAREE

2016 2015
—E—RF —Z=—h%F
$’°000 $'000
T T
Guarantees given to banks for: BB EIEMA TRITZHER -
Mortgage facilities granted to BTAREEMEER
purchasers of the Group’s ZIRBRIE
properties 551,227 652,032

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods commence from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and end after the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the financial
period in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties. The directors
consider that in case of default on payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued interest and
penalty, and therefore no provision has been made in connection
with the guarantees.
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AEECRETROIETAKENEE
RZIRIBREMBRER - REERZ
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MASBEEREERBMEZAELE
o AR EREBRHERZBE
HE B 2@ BB KB G R
TR

AEERUR T ARENEER 21KB
RiEmERER M BRI EELT
MEAEE ZEZARMERIERE
R BEMEZAIERFEEERERK
B8 2 B E AR EE B IA K E
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EKEEEA TR S

(a) Related party transactions () BBEALRS
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the BrEA TSR b o Fref il ;932 5
financial statements, the Group had the following significant AN REE R F AN A ST
related party transactions with related parties during the year: ATERBEALRS :
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE-nhfF
$°000 $'000
o Tt
Companies controlled by AR AR Sl 2 A F]
the ultimate controlling
shareholder:
Rental income EeUWA 6,925 3,242
(b) Transactions with key management personnel (b) EHEXEEBAEZRS
The remuneration of key management personnel of the REEZFEEBRABHM(BHE
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors is ENARFEEZKIE)WAT ¢
as follows:
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-nfF
$°000 $'000
S Tt
Short-term employee benefits MHIEERA 4,557 6,818
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s BEERFETBAENG 2E—F
emoluments are included in note 9 to the financial statements. HEERIIEmMRMFO -
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

Loans from related parties

Please refer to note 29 for the loans from related parties to
the Company. Interest incurred during the year and interest
payable to related parties as at 31 December 2016 are set
out in notes 8 and 26 respectively.

Loans from an intermediate holding company

Please refer to note 29 for the loans from an intermediate
holding company to the Company. Interest incurred during
the year and interest payable to related parties as at 31
December 2016 are set out in notes 8 and 26 respectively.

Other related party transactions

Other amounts due from/to related parties are set out in
notes 23 and 26.

Outstanding balances with a related party

Details of the Group’s loans to its joint venture are included in
note 19 to the financial statements.

Guarantees provided by related parties

The Company’s related party and an intermediate holding
company have guaranteed certain bank loans and other
borrowings made to the Group of up to $2,977,955,000
(2015: $2,387,940,000) as at the end of the reporting period,
as further detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.
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(d)

(e)
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3. ERBEEALIRZ @

BEEATER

EEBEATERFARBIZFH
5 E2HMFE29 RERNE
EZFERRZZ—XF+=A
—t+—AENMBEEALZFES R
BT FE8 K% 26 °

—REPEZER AT ER

—RHFREERARREFARQA
ZERF2HME20 - REFERE
EZFBERR-_TE—RE+_A
—t+—AEMBEEALZFES R
BT FES % 26 °

HttBEA LR S

Hip el FEfT B A T ZIED R
B AMFE23 K2 26 ©
REE—BBEALLEER

AEBERTFTEALDEZFHEBER
REAFIREMFE19 o

BEATRHEZER

RERERR - ARBZBEALR
—EFREERAFERETAE
B 2 5 %2,977,955,000 L ( = &
—F4F 1 2,387,940,0007T) Z & T
RITER R EMETRERER - B
H— SR BN IS IRERMI 128 o
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

194

(Continued)

(h) Applicability of Listing Rules relating to connected

transactions

The related party transactions in respect of rental income
above constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of loans from
related parties, loans from an intermediate holding company,
other related party transactions, outstanding balances with
a related party and guarantees by related party and an
intermediate holding company above constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are
exempt from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

3. ERBEEALIRZ @

(h)

BEXZERz EHRA

FREBAESWRAZEEALRS
BRETHRAUNE+HAZAERLZ
SEMERS °

B LAREALER - —EPME
BERARER EMEEALR
5 RMEE—RBBEA LB
BAL R EZERARRMEZ
ERZEEATRZSHEK LETRA
FETHAEMERLBEX SR
BRER S - A FARZER
BT EMRUFTHAZMRH
WEMRE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

39. IRl 2EmMT A

RERERR - SEReR T AZEEE
AT

TREE

Loans and receivables

EXR K EWRIE
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—RF
$’000 $'000
T Tt

Financial assets included in trade FTAE S M E M WA

and other receivables ZEmMEE 43,666 572,756
Pledged deposits [REE R CE 502,856 10,737
Cash and cash equivalents R MReEFEED 2,680,562 2,958,264
3,227,084 3,541,757

Financial liabilities

TRIBE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REBERTIIRzEBEE
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RF
$’000 $'000
SPo Tt
Financial liabilities included in trade FTAE S R EAE R FRIE
and other payables ZEmesE 4,136,196 1,858,611
Interest payable to an JER — AR AR R A1 H) S
intermediate holding Company 344,172 220,298
Loans from financial institutions SRIEEE R 3,371,778 2,890,395
Loans from related parties R AT B 266,296 330,747
Loans from an intermediate —fEP AR AR ER
holding company 4,793,475 5,629,832
12,912,457 10,929,883
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40.

41.

196

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, financial assets included in trade
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in trade and other
payables, amounts due from/to related parties and intermediate
holding companies approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash and interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

40. R T A

41.

BEBERRARQAF « —F—

ZARBERA
JLIE{E_."H

AEESRMIAZREERERL
BIEARE -

A fEE

BEENG ReLReFEY BHE

HEF - FFABSREMEEFRIEBELZS

BMEE AESZMEMENAFEZS

BMEE B ENEEALETRHE
H’L“ FRE AR BEAERREM
: IEH&B@EZ?IE\E%% 5 -

TREENABZAARBERIARA
BRHITHEEITZ —AR 5 (LIRS
FEENE) AR TR SRR

RZE—RFR-_ZE—HF+=A
=+—8" KEIIEET—HEQﬁ{E@
HEZeREERSRAE -

TRIEREEERRBR

AEETIZeRIABERENES
=2 xfﬂﬁ%lﬁiiLA&?&%&ETT&E@
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings).

4. cREMREEEZERBER

(#)
GRS

Kglﬁﬁuuzmiﬁﬁj “@JZJ—L Ig
BEAEBTBN R B2 EBER -

TEBREMA LS BRETE B
AT - AEE BB (R EER
IHE)HREARTRED 2 HBE
J_go

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) in
in basis profit
points before tax
MRBLAT
LA (TH) g
EE 2 i, GR)
$'000
7T
31 December 2016 —E-R"Ft+ZRA=+—H 100 (19,448)
31 December 2015 “T-hF+-A=+—H 100 (17,426)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the year
and had applied the exposure to interest rate risk to those bank
and other borrowings in existence at that date. The estimated
percentage increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the year until the end of the next reporting period.
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41.

198

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s business is principally conducted in RMB, GBP, EUR,
US$ and AUD. The functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC, the United Kingdom, Europe, the USA and Australia
are RMB, GBP, EUR, US$ and AUD, respectively, and they do
not have significant monetary assets or liabilities denominated in
currencies other than their respective functional currencies. The
functional currency of the Group’s other subsidiaries is the Hong
Kong dollar.

The Company is exposed to currency risk primarily through
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, current taxation,
loans from financial institutions, loans from an intermediate holding
company and amounts due from subsidiaries that are denominated
in GBP, EUR, US$, AUD and RMB.

4. erEREEEEREER

(4)
SN JEL R

AEBMEBEAARE - 58 BOUT -
TSR ERT - AEEZHHE - &
BN RBFRORANEHE AR Z
WEEBD R SARE - B8 - BUT
EURRTT  ZEWNBRALEEKRE
BEEXRBUKRKREZBEZEES
Shz Bt EHIE - REBEMER
BIZREEERET °

B

RAREZFEBARE - BOT - X7
BIT R ARBINE 2 ZRHIBITER
BebBRE2EEY  BHNRHEMEBUK
R BHREMENTIEA - KA -
TREBER  —RTEERAFER
K PRSP A BRI AR R R o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  41.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the

reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange
rate on the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s equity.

TRE R EE B ERBUER

(&)
SINGE LBz (48)

TRIIRAEE 2 BB RAEE
T NS R UER 7 A8 T a8
B2 B -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase/
exchange profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity”
RRBE A1
= Y Al i
&, i) &, R4 &, OR)*
% $°000 $°000
T T
2016 —B-KF
If the Hong Kong dollar fis/ 8 7T BTz (B
weakens against EUR 1 (9,891) (9,891)
If the Hong Kong dollar fiw 78 T 5 BT IS B
strengthens against EUR 1 9,891 9,891
If the Hong Kong dollar il BT R AR A
weakens against GBP 1 (21,748) (21,748)
If the Hong Kong dollar finl P8 7T H R 5 IEE
strengthens against GBP 1 21,748 21,748
If the Hong Kong dollar BT i R TTaz A
weakens against US$ 1 (28,804) (28,804)
If the Hong Kong dollar BT R E T E
strengthens against US$ 1 28,804 28,804
If the Hong Kong dollar fis 7T Rtz (B
weakens against AUD 1 (27,647) (27,647)
If the Hong Kong dollar fisi 7T R TR (E
strengthens against AUD 1 27,647 27,647
If the Hong Kong dollar BT HARBRE
weakens against RMB 1 2,340 2,340
If the Hong Kong dollar iP5 T H AR E
strengthens against RMB 1 (2,340) (2,340)
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. @RiEMREEBEREBE

200

AND POLICIES (continuea) (#&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) HPEE B (4)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in Increase/
exchange profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
BRAAT
fE il L
2,/ O ) g, Ci ) g, Crd) >
% $000 $000
T 7T
2015 —T-RF
If the Hong Kong dollar i B 7T BT Bz (&
weakens against EUR 1 (6,861) (6,861)
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 78 7T H BT E
strengthens against EUR 1 6,861 6,861
If the Hong Kong dollar WS i R A
weakens against GBP 1 (83,709) (83,709)
If the Hong Kong dollar WS T R EE
strengthens against GBP 1 33,709 33,709
If the Hong Kong dollar BT R E T A
weakens against US$ 1 (20,608) (20,608)
If the Hong Kong dollar WS T R T EE
strengthens against US$ 1 20,608 20,608
If the Hong Kong dollar i 7T R T Rz (B
weakens against AUD 1 (27,754) (27,754)
If the Hong Kong dollar BT W R A
strengthens against AUD 1 27,754 27,754
If the Hong Kong dollar i 7S TTH A REEE
weakens against RMB 1 (168) (168)
If the Hong Kong dollar AT ARBIZE
strengthens against RMB 1 168 168
Excluding retained earnings * NEIEIRE 5 A
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk. The extent of the
Group’s credit exposure is represented by the aggregate balance
of cash at banks, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables.

For deposits at banks and financial institutions, deposits are only
placed with reputable banks.

For the trade receivables arising from the sale of properties, the
Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving cash before
delivery of properties. The Group has set out policies to ensure
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group also
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable balance to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The maximum exposure to credit
risk without taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment allowance.

In addition, the Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees to secure
obligations of such purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosure
of these guarantees is set out in note 37. Except for these financial
guarantees by the Group as set out in note 37, the Group does not
provide guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of each reporting period is disclosed in note
37.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in
note 23.

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited ¢ Annual Report 2016

A1, cREREEEZERBER

(#)
EERR

AEBYEEMETEERR - NEE
ZEERRSRRITEE - XREIRT
TER AN E 5 N B A R R IR 2 45 kAR
B e

MIBTTREREBTRME  THET
BAEERIFZIRIT o

MHEMEEEZEZIRWFEMS -
AEBEEBEXNYEMPREHRES
EEEERR - ANEEC HERR AR
REMBEITR RO A RER - AEEH
IR IE #A R B & 1R (8 51| & 5 8 WK IR 45 85
Z AT E S BR - PAREGR BL T AT U Bl & B8
fEH R ZRERTE - HES LA
ZEMERR  AREEERRATE
MRAKRAES AT B EE 2 REEMRIE
R E R -

AN AERESETHREMNERZH
RITRE - WREERAMESZFER
EREEZER - BERZSTRERZFA
WEEH M FES7 o B T RMIES7 PI &L
ZAREMBERZZFMHER A%
B EEHEFRMEASE@EEER
e REMEHR - BRFVBERE
B2 R E SRR TR RES7E L #ER -

BERAASEREE S M HE R FRIA S
ZEERRZHMASLCHBEHNME
23 °

201



Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. RtERERE B ERBER

AND POLICIES (continuea) (#&)

Liquidity risk MENE TRk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring REBFEFRALEERSE SR T AR
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its RHEESERER - ZIT AR ER
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) EEeBmTARSMEE (NEFER
and projected cash flows from operations. FRIB) 2 BB A A RTERIEB RS RE ©
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity rEECBEEAERERRITER T
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans, convertible BmRES R EMERERE S RIRTHE
bonds and other loans. ErEREEE 2 2 T o

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end RBERAR - REBERSFTHRTE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted NRzemBEIHNBBERNAT

payments, is as follows:

2016
At
Less than
1 year or 1to2 2to5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FR5
REXR —EWEF MZRE BREF st
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $°000
T T T T Fr
Interest-bearing bank SHERITER
borrowings 1,814,475 238,121 1,646,268 36,937 3,735,801
Loans from related parties E#:E A TE 241,728 36,379 - - 278,107
Loans from an intermediate — &= 2% A 7]
holding company = 838,011 1,033,384 2,154,283 1,428,775 5,454,453
Trade payables and ZIRENFIER
other payables H fth e 308 4,136,196 - 155,174 189,538 4,480,908

7,030,410 1,307,884 3,955,725 1,655,250 13,949,269
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. RtERERE B ERBER

AND POLICIES (continuea) (#&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RENE € Bk (4#)
2015
“ETh%F
Less than
1 year or 1to2 2t05 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FRNHK
HER —EMF MEDF b cRake= st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T
Interest-bearing bank FTERRITER
borrowings 1,649,587 368,836 1,023,193 84,712 3,126,328
Loans from related parties B3 A TEX 178,168 194,313 - - 372,481
Loans from an intermediate — & o B A 7]
holding company = 1,442,246 847,439 2,844,875 1,522,719 6,657,279
Trade payables and ZIENRER
other payables H A e I8 1,848,096 143,881 86,932 — 2,078,909

5,118,097 1,554,469 3,965,000 1,607,431 12,234,997

Capital management EREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEREE 2 FZERERRERE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and ERISE AL E 2 e W R iR TER 2
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business BARLE  UXHEEBRIERSR
and maximise shareholders’ value. RBEERE-

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments REBEBTEBEHEANER  WIRLEERBR
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk SERAEEE CRRFEIEL AR -
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the REFNABRERERE  AEBNEH
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to B R EIKE - B AR 2k 1T R
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. e REEWEREBEREZ - BURHIE
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for FrrE B LAEIRE R o

managing capital during the year.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and a debt-to-

asset ratio. The gearing ratio is defined as net debt divided by
total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprises, loans from financial
institutions, including current and non-current portions, loans from

related parties and an intermediate holding company, less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. The debt-to-asset
ratio is total liabilities net of advance from customers divided by

total assets. The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting period

41, TRlEREIER £

(&)

BEREE (&)

ZRBUER

ZJS%@@ﬁHﬁZJSE\ﬁtt?Z&EW%EE
LREITER - ERBBELERERR/MA
@1E/$%E%LM@$ZEZ%MDEL1 - BE

FHEERERBEER

(B EEIH & 3F

BB ) ~ BEA L R —EPEERA
AEFTRRES LREFEYREERT
R BRHEELETR/UABLBERERP
BYBRUBEE - NBERRZEARR

was as follows: BELRIR ¢

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RF
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Loans from financial institutions TRIEIBE R 3,371,778 2,890,395
Loans from related parties BiEALTER 266,296 330,747

Loans from an intermediate —fEPEER AT ER
holding company 4,793,475 5,629,832
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BeRREEEY (2,680,562) (2,958,264)
Pledged deposits [REEwGIVES N (502,856) (10,737)
Net debt BEFEE 5,248,131 5,881,973
Total equity e 2,916,820 2,899,127
Total equity plus net debt miEm e EFRE 8,164,951 8,781,100
Gearing ratio BARAGFHE 64.3% 67%
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The debt-to-asset ratio as at the end of the reporting period was

41, TRlEREIER £

(&)

BEREE (&)

ZRBUER

RIEMRZEBHEELTMT

as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—RF
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Total liabilities BaE 13,723,381 12,508,887
Less: Advances from customers W BEPBR (78,003) (568,861)
13,645,378 11,940,026
Total assets REE 16,640,201 15,408,014
Debt-to-asset ratio BEIHEELLER 82% 77.5%
==
42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. SREHAEREIE

There are no events after the reporting period which should be
disclosed till the date these financial statements were approved.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BN ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 28 :EBE4N - HLABITIIR)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  43. KA BB FEARR R
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the RREHR - AR BB RKE RN
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: NS
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—RF
$°000 $'000
SEo T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - BB R 1,631 2,527
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 1,023,782 1,023,782
Loans to subsidiaries BB ARIER 3,894,866 3,620,163
Due from subsidiaries FEW KB A A FIE 116,569 89,811
Total non-current assets IEREE ELE 5,036,848 4,736,283
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables Ho e Y skI8 1,640,299 1,968,056
Cash and cash equivalents Re MReEEY 33,757 66,192
Total current assets MBEERE 1,674,056 2,034,248
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables HoA & (S 5RR 1,107,662 771,294
Loans from financial institutions T RIEIBE R 930,612 310,040
Total current liabilities mEEERE 2,038,274 1,081,334
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS #E (AfE) EEFE (364,218) 952,914
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 4,672,630 5,689,197
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Loans from financial institutions T RIEIBER ) - 930,120
Loans from an intermediate holding —MFEERARER
company 1,987,385 1,958,581
Interest payable to an intermediate FE — AR AR R B RS
holding company 266,999 160,424
Total non-current liabilities EmE B EEE 2,254,384 3,049,125
Net assets BEFE 2,418,246 2,640,072
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners BAREEAELER
of the parent
Share capital N 469,735 469,735
Reserves (note) A (fIEE) 1,948,511 2,170,337
Total equity MRS 2,418,246 2,640,072
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N - HLABTIIR)

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

43, NN R B S AR R 3R o)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: PF=E -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: NARREBRENT :
Retained
earnings/
Share Special (accumulate
premium reserve losses) Total
REBEA,
RADRE BRI (RETEE) et
$'000 $'000 $°000 $°000
T T T T
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—HA—H 1,935,266 127,961 491,991 2,555,218
Loss for the year and total REEEBER
comprehensive loss for REFERHE
the year EiEmEa - - (384,881) (384,881)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE-RF+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2016 R-Z—~E—A—H 1,935,266 127,961 107,110 2,170,337
Loss for the year and AEEEER
total comprehensive loss AEEEA
for the year ikt - - (221,826) (221,826)
Transfer of special reserve Rl EEE
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—RE
+=A=+-A 1,035,266 127,961 (114,716) 1,048,511
Ding Benxi Liu Chaohui
T 2|z
Chairman Executive Director
FiE HITEE

44, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 8 March 2017.
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Financial Summary

ITERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=t—HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T——F ZZT—=F T-NmF —T-HF ZB-RE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FAT FET FET
RESULTS e
Revenue Wz 2,773,419 1,347,995 185,849 2,176,737 374,166
Profit/(loss) before tax from — FHELLE 2
continuing operations B ALEF (BE) 613,041 484,283 (190,416) 501,367 201,420
Income tax (expenses)/credit FHELLEETRS 2
from continuing operations S (Fisz) /% (369,678) (250,382) 73,322 (522,199) (125,351)
Net loss on disposal HERBARZ
on subsidiaries B85 — (45,326) — — =
Profit/(loss) for the year AEEHF (E18) 243,363 233,901 (117,094) (20,832) 76,069
Profit/(loss) attributable to & ARI#HHB A
owners of the parent FEMEHF (EEB) 232,335 190,879 (176,026) (262,693) (60,663)
Non-controlling interests PR R = 11,028 43,022 58,932 241,861 136,732
Profit/(loss) for the year AELHF, (EE) 243,363 233,901 (117,094) (20,832) 76,069
At 31 December
R+=B=+—-H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T——F —EB-—=F —Z-NFE —ZT-FHF ZB-xF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS and LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets BWEE 6,168,259 4822152 12,184,402 15,408,014 16,640,201
Total liabilities wafE 5,377,119 3,475,835 8,706,053 12,508,887 13,723,381
Net assets BEFE 791,140 1,346,317 3,478,349 2,899,127 2,916,820
Equity attributable to owners & A R1#HB A
of the parent FEfEHE =S 663,406 540,499 2,769,147 2,188,931 1,983,009
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 127,734 805,818 709,202 710,196 933,811
Total equity BiEm 791,140 1,346,317 3,478,349 2,899,127 2,916,820
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Property Portfolio
MEEE

1. MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 1. FEfFEYHE
Expected
Stage of date of Gross Group’s
Location Intended use  completion completion Site area floor area interest
T rEE
A=+ BRERZ % TP BZITHH #HEEE EEmEE MR
(sq.m.) (sa.m.) (%)
(FFXK) (FAXK)
1 Nine Elms Lane, Residential Under 2021 8,400 110,000 60%
London SW8 5NQ, and commercial  development —ZT——4
the United Kingdom FEREE R
400 East Waterside Drive, Residential Under 2020 4,838 176,000 54%
Chicago, lllinois, 60601 and commercial  development —ZE =T
USA EEREE R
Plaza de Espana, Residential Under 2020 4,655 90,000 60%
19, 28008, Madrid, Spain* and commercial  development —ZE T F
FEREE R
38-44 Old Burleigh Road, Residential Under 2019 11,355 144,000 33%
Surfers Paradise, and commercial  development —ZE—NF
Queensland, Australia FEREE BREAP
4217
1 Alfred Street, 19-31 Residential Under 2021 4,038 98,300 60%
and 31a Pitt Street, and commercial  development —ZT - —4F
Sydney, New South FEREE BREFP
Wales, Australia 2000
* An agreement has been entered into by the Group on 3 November * AEENR-_Z—AF+—A=Z83LE

BRBMBEFGE - MZEBENS
BRFEZEE -

2016 on the disposal of the Madrid Project, and which has been
reclassified as assets held for sale.
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Property Portfolio
MBS

2. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 2. FECKRIYE

Gross Group’s

Location Existing use floor area interest

rEEH

NE AR EEmE HfEsE

(sa.m) (%)
(F7K)

Hengli City Residential and 3,228 50.35%

No. 128 Wusi Road commercial

Gulou District FERmEE

Fuzhou City, Fujian

RERMT

gEE

FPOEE 128 5%

8%

Site P05, north to Huan Cheng Nan Road Residential and 24,965 51%

No. 1, Guilin, commercial

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, FEREE

the PRC

B ERLEBRE

TR R — B

LAdE PO5 HB 38
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Property Portfolio
MEEE

3. MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT 3. =EEFEREYE

Gross Group’s Term of

Location Existing use floor area interest lease
rEH

vE AR EEMmE K g HE

(sg.m.) (%)

(FHK)

The Commercial Podium of Commercial 56,219 50.35% Medium
Hengli City [GES rh HR
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
Rt M
g
FPYEE 12858
BAMEETE
Portion of the Carpark of Commercial 11,804 50.35% Medium
Hengli City [GES R Hj
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
BN
ErgE
FPUEE 12855
EHRBDIFES
Portion of the Office of Commercial 11,955 50.35% Medium
Hengli City [GES * A
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
Rt M T
xig =
FPYEE 12858
BB PWAE

The Shopping Mall of Commercial 152,440 51% Medium
Site P05, north to EES A
Huan Cheng Nan Road

No. 1, Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang

Autonomous Region, the PRC

B EFEAL TR B AR

AR R — B

AL POS 158 75 45
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Property Portfolio
MBS

4. MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWN USE 4. FEFFERAYZE
Gross Group’s
Location Existing use floor area interest
AEH
& BRR® EEEE s
(sq.m.) (%)
(FF7K)

40/F the office of Office 981 50.35%

Hengli City WAE

No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
mEEMm

SiEE

FPUREE 128 5%
BB 40ERAE
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